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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERE®E

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Cocoon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) takes pleasure in
presenting the audited consolidated results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2024 (the “Reporting Period”).

BUSINESS REVIEW, PROSPECTS AND FUTURE
PLAN

In 2024, the stock markets of the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) continue to remain weak. The stock market of Hong
Kong has rebounded nearly 18% after a four-year losing streak.

During the first half of 2024, the Hang Seng Index (HSI)
rose by 3.9%, the Hang Seng China Enterprises Index (HSCEI)
increased by 9.8%, while the Hang Seng TECH Index declined
by 5.6%. However, from their lows in late January 2024, the HSI,
HSCEI, and Hang Seng TECH Index rebounded by 18.4%, 26.6%,
and 18.3%, respectively.

The stock market of the PRC showed mixed results in 2024.
The Shanghai Composite Index (SHCOMP) fell by 0.3%, while the
Shenzhen Component Index (SZCOMP) declined by 12.0% in the
first half of the year.

The stock market of the United States (the “U.S.”)
experienced substantial gains in 2024. The Dow Jones Industrial
Average (Dow) increased by 3.8%, the Nasdag Composite
Index (Nasdaq) rose by 18.1%, and the S&P 500 Index (S&P
500) advanced by 14.5% in the first half of the year. The market
sentiment was positive, driven by expectations of a soft landing
for the US economy and the Federal Reserve’s cautious approach
to monetary policy. The strong performance was also supported
by the resilience of the US labor market and a decline in volatility
across most asset classes.

The Group expects the stock market and economy of
the PRC and Hong Kong will continue to struggle between
continuation of uncertainty in 2024. Moreover, the uncertainty
surrounding the new US government has significant implications
for the stock market, as its policies and actions can create both
opportunities and risks for investors.

The Group will closely monitor the development of the
external environment and continue to evaluate its impact on our
business, financial position and operating results.
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Looking ahead to the year 2025, the Company will stay
in focus to invest in trading securities, private equity funds and
private enterprises with potential prospect. Our approach will keep
timely and appropriate investment strategies in response to the
volatile market, in order to enhance our investment portfolio and
achieve net asset appreciation. The Board will pay close attention
to the macro trends and keep seeking opportunities to invest in
China, Hong Kong and overseas. The Company will continue
to implement its risk management policy with an aim to achieve
stable returns on investments for our shareholders.

APPRECIATION

Lastly, | would like to thank our dedicated employees for
their invaluable contributions and enthusiasm in their work. Their
zeal in discharging duties and responsibilities will ensure the
success of our Group.

Chau Wai Hing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2025
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEBNWRIMN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group’s revenue for the Reporting Period comprised
dividend income and interest earned from loan notes. For the
year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recorded a revenue
of approximately HK$254,000 as compared to approximately
HK$1,399,000 in the prior year, representing a decrease of
approximately 81.8%. The decrease in revenue was mainly due
to decrease of interest income during the Reporting Period.
Gross proceeds from disposals of trading securities for the
Reporting Period was recorded of approximately HK$49,114,000
as compared to approximately HK$62,032,000 for the year ended
31 December 2023. The Group recorded a realised gain of
approximately HK$6,673,000 (2023: approximately HK$251,000)
and fair value loss of approximately HK$78,891,000 (2023: gain
of approximately HK$54,869,000) on equity securities held by
the Group during the Reporting Period. The turnaround from fair
value gain to loss in equity securities held by the Group was
mainly attributable to poor performance of the equity securities
in the U.S. holding by the Group. During the Reporting Period,
no impairment loss of deposits and other receivables were
recognised (2023: nil). With the unfavourable performance of
certain publicly traded securities held by the Group and fair value
loss of certain unlisted securities during the Reporting Period,
the Group recorded loss attributable to owners of the Company
was approximately HK$76,810,000 as compared to profit of
approximately HK$53,505,000 in prior year.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s unlisted investments
(comprised of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income) were approximately HK$48,441,000 (2023:
HK$42,346,000). Other receivables, deposits and prepayments
was approximately HK$216,000 (2023: HK$338,000).

As at 31 December 2024, the net assets of the Group were
approximately HK$130,064,000 (2023: HK$186,246,000). The
net assets decreased by 30.17% when compared to prior year.
The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss decreased
from approximately HK$172,306,000 as at 31 December 2023 to
approximately HK$115,713,000 as at 31 December 2024 and the
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
was approximately HK$28,865,000 (2023: HK$22,241,000) as at
31 December 2024.

6 COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSE#ERER 2 T

Bt 7% [ R

AEBRBREHEORAABRERARERK
SEMESZANBEK REE_ZE-_NF+=A
S+ —HLEFERN AEBEHEBKRAL254,000%
7T 2= F Bl A #91,399,0007 T 0 8 4 #781.8% ° Ik
ABPDTIEERRREIB ZF B W AR D e
RBEHE HEXSIELFNMGSRELERSBY
49,114,000 T MBE T =+ _-_A=+—
B It % 5#62,032,0008 T - RREHH A& E
B zRAFTHEBEE R I E46,673,000%8
T (ZZE =4 :4251,00087T) W R AR EEEY
78,891,000 7T ( — & — = 4F : L 25 #754,869,0008
L) cAKERERAFTLHRAABRZEAEE T
FEARAEEFENEBRAEFS KRBT E KRR
HHHE BEEHRANIZE REMERFRERSE (=
T_-FE) AREHE RAEEMHENET
PARGESHFERAITERETHELTESFNAAE
FBRZEE ANEBESSEARAHEEARGEBERALN
76,810,000/ 7T M 7 2 F Al & % 7 £953,505,0007%
=

R-B-_WE+_F=+—B ~EBHEL
MEE(BRETCAEARERERIEZS/E
ERAREREMZERSIIERZSREE)NB
48,441,000 7T ( —Z — = 4 : 42,346,000/ 7T ) ° &
fih B UL 3K - e R TE Y 3K TH A 49216,0008 T (==
— =% :338,000/ ) °

MN_ZE-_NE+-A=+—0 AEENEEF
{E#7 £130,064,000/% 7T (=& = = 4 : 186,246,000
PEID) cBEEFEREFRA30.17% IR AR EBERE
HUNEYeMEER_S-_=F+-_A=+—H24%
172,306,000 TRV EZE-_E-_WE+=-_A=+—H
2 #115,713,0008 0 R T -_MWMFE+_-_A=+—
BEAREREMEZAKREIEZEREEN S
28,865,000/ 7T (=& = = 4 : 22,241,000/ 7T ) °



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had available funds of
approximately HK$2,662,000 which were mainly placed in banks
and licensed securities firms as general working capital. Bank
balances and cash balance in licensed securities firms held by
the Group were mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The Group had shareholders’ funds of approximately
HK$130,064,000 at 31 December 2024 compared to
HK$186,246,000 at 31 December 2023, representing a decrease
of approximately 30.17%.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had borrowings of
approximately HK$13,939,000 (2023: HK$14,335,000). The
gearing ratio for the Group was 10.72% (2023: 7.70%) which
represents the ratio of the Group’s borrowings to the net asset
value of the Group.

The Group did not have any capital expenditure commitment
as at 31 December 2024.

During the Reporting Period, no share option was granted,
exercised, lapsed or cancelled under the share option scheme,
adopted by the Company at annual general meeting on 17 June
2022.

Save as the placing under general mandate and the capital
reorganisation mentioned under the heading of “Fund raising
activities” and “Capital Reorganisation” below respectively, there
was no significant change in the Group’s capital structure for the
year ended 31 December 2024.

Fund raising activity

Save as the placing of new shares as disclosed in note 26
to the consolidated financial statements and under the heading of
“Placing of New Shares” below, there was no significant change
in the Group’s capital structure for the Reporting Period.

Placing of New Shares

Reference is made to the announcements of the
Company dated 13 May 2024 and 24 May 2024 (the “Placing
Announcements A”) in relation to, amongst others, the placing
(the “Placing A”) under general mandate granted to the Directors
at the annual general meeting held on 30 June 2023. Unless
otherwise defined, capitalised terms used herein shall have the
same meanings as those defined in the Placing Announcements
A.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEBNWRIMN

After trading hours on 13 May 2024, the Company and
Sorrento Securities Limited (the “Placing Agent A”) entered into
the placing agreement (the “Placing Agreement A”) pursuant to
which the Company has appointed the Placing Agent A to procure,
on a best efforts basis, placees to subscribe for up to 103,601,332
new shares at a price of HK$0.100 per placing share. The closing
price per share of the Company as quoted on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 13 May 2024,
the date of the Placing Agreement A, was HK$0.103. The gross
proceeds from the Placing A were approximately HK$10.4 million
and the net proceeds were approximately HK$10.2 million. It
was intended that the net proceeds from the Placing A would be
utilised for investment in the listed and/or unlisted securities in the
aggregate amount of approximately HK$6.7 million, repayment of
short term loan and payment of interest in the aggregate amount
of approximately HK$2.0 million and the remaining balance would
be used as the Group’s general working capital.

Details of the Placing A and Placing Agreement A were set
out in the Placing Announcements A.

As at 31 December 2024, detailed breakdown and
description of the utilisation of the net proceeds from the Placing
A were as follows:

Date of announcement Event Net proceed raised

=R ES:|
13 May 2024 Placing new shares Approximately (i)
(completed on under general HK$10.2 million
24 May 2024) mandate
(ii)
(iii)
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Intended use of net proceeds
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Approximately HK$6.7
million for the investment
in listed and/or unlisted
securities

Approximately HK$2.0
million for repayment
of short term loan and
payment of interest

Approximately HK$1.5
million for general working
capital of the Group

Actual use of proceeds
FRREERAZURBHACAR
AERARERLRE R

(

=

(i)

Approximately HK$6.7 million
was used to invest in listed
securities

Approximately HK$2.0 million
was used to repay short
term loan and/or payment of
interest

Approximately HK$1.5 million
was used for operating
expenses
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company
dated 23 August 2024 and 11 September 2024 (the “Placing
Announcements B”) in relation to, amongst others, the placing
(the “Placing B”) under general mandate granted to the Directors
at the annual general meeting held on 27 June 2024. Unless
otherwise defined, capitalised terms used herein shall have the
same meanings as those defined in the Placing Announcements
B.

After trading hours on 23 August 2024, the Company and
SFGHK Limited (the “Placing Agent B”) entered into the placing
agreement (the “Placing Agreement B”) pursuant to which the
Company has appointed the Placing Agent B to procure, on a
best efforts basis, placees to subscribe for up to 14,158,848
new shares at a price of HK$0.300 per placing share. The
closing price per share of the Company as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on 23 August 2024, the date of the Placing Agreement
B, was HK$0.325. The gross proceeds from the Placing B
were approximately HK$4.3 million and the net proceeds were
approximately HK$4.2 million. It was intended that the net
proceeds from the Placing B would be utilised for investment in
the listed and/or unlisted securities in the aggregate amount of
approximately HK$3.7 million and the remaining balance would be
used as the Group’s general working capital.

Details of the Placing B and Placing Agreement B were set
out in the Placing Announcements B.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEBNWRIMN

As at 31 December 2024, detailed breakdown and
description of the utilisation of the net proceeds from the Placing
B were as follows:

R-Z-_MFE+-_A=+—R EEZEBME
RBFRARERAAARFALT

Actual use of proceeds and
expected timeline for fully
utilising the unutilising amount

Date of announcement Event Net proceed raised  Intended use of net proceeds (Note 1)
FEREERARURBHER

=R ES| BEERSRERE FEREREREAR AERRERERER (W)

23 August 2024 Placing new shares Approximately (i)  Approximately HK$3.7 (i) Approximately HK$3.7 million
(completed on under general HK$4.2 million million for the investment was used to invest in listed
11 September 2024) mandate in listed and unlisted securities

securities

(i)  Approximately HK$0.5 (i)  Approximately HK$0.5 million

million for general working was used for operating
capital of the Group expense
ZEZNFNAZ+Z=R RE-REERE K42BBHBT () HITEEBABTRAAEREL () HTEEBRATEARKREL
(RZTZmF il mRkIELEMES & %
AA+—BRERK)
iy HOSEBBTHAEALE (i) HNOSEBETCHAELER
—REEES 53
Note: Hiat -
1 The expected timetable for fully utilising the unutilised net proceeds 1 BEBARDAMEFIEFENEARHRTERAE

is determined based on the Group’s best estimate of future market
conditions, and is subject to change depending on current market

conditions and future market developments.

CAPITAL REORGANISATION

On 30 April 2024, the Company announced to implement the
capital reorganisation involving:

(i) the Share Consolidation whereby every ten (10) issued
and unissued Existing Shares of par value of HK$0.1
each will be consolidated into one (1) Consolidated
Share of par value of HK$1.0 each;
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(if)

(iii)

(iv)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

immediately following the Share Consolidation
becoming effective, the Capital Reduction whereby the
issued share capital of the Company will be reduced
by (a) rounding down the total number of Consolidated
Shares in the issued share capital of the Company to
the nearest whole number by cancelling any fraction of
a Consolidated Share in the issued share capital of the
Company; and (b) eliminating the paid up capital of the
Company to the extent of HK$0.99 on each of the then
issued Consolidated Shares such that the par value
of each issued Consolidated Share would be reduced
from HK$1.00 to HK$0.01;

immediately following the Share Consolidation
becoming effective, the Sub-division, whereby
each authorised but unissued Consolidated Shares
(including the authorized unissued Consolidated
Shares arising from the Capital Reduction) be
subdivided into one hundred (100) authorised but
unissued New Shares of par value HK$0.01 each so
that immediately following the Capital Reorganisation,
the authorised share capital of the Company shall be
HK$1,000,000,000 divided into 100,000,000,000 New
Shares;

immediately following the Capital Reduction and
Sub-division becoming effective, the Share Premium
Reduction whereby the entire amount standing to the
credit of the Share Premium Account would be reduced
to nil; and

upon the Capital Reorganisation becoming effective,
the credits arising from the Capital Reduction and the
Share Premium Reduction would be transferred to the
contributed surplus account of the Company within
the meaning of the Companies Act to then be applied
to set off the Accumulated Losses of the Company
or be applied by the Board in a manner as permitted
by the Bye-Laws and all applicable laws of Bermuda
from time to time without further authorisation from the
Shareholders.

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
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The Capital Reorganisation had become effective on 2 July
2024. Details of the above were set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 30 April 2024 and 2 July 2024 and the
circular of the Company dated 31 May 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEBNWRIMN

INVESTMENT REVIEW

The Company is an investment company listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) under Chapter 21 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange.
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
the Group is principally engaged in investments in securities
listed on recognised stock exchanges and unlisted investments
with potential for earning growth and capital appreciation. It is
the corporate strategy of the Group to strengthen its existing
businesses and continue its focus on financing future investment
opportunities domestically and internationally to achieve financial
growth for the Group and to maximise the shareholders’ value.

The Company held eighteen investments as of 31 December
2024, comprising sixteen equity securities listed in Hong Kong
and the US, one item of interests in a private entity in Anguilla
and one item of interests in a private entity in the U.S.. Pursuant
to the requirements stipulated in Rule 21.12 of the Listing Rules,
the Company discloses its ten largest investments and all
individual investments with value exceeding 5% of the Company’s
gross assets with brief description of the investee companies
are provided in the notes 20 to 21 to the consolidated financial
statements of this report and the section under “significant
investments held and their performance” below.

Significant investments held and their performance

Details of the performance of the significant investments
held by the Group as at 31 December 2024 were disclosed under
the heading of “Financial Review” above and in notes 20 to 21 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The ten largest investments and all individual investments
with value exceeding 5% of the Company’s gross assets as at 31
December 2024 with brief description of the investee companies
as follows and as disclosed in notes 20 to 21 to the consolidated
financial statements:

Private Equity Investment — Perfect Path Limited (“Perfect
Path”)

Perfect Path is a private entity incorporated in Anguilla,
which principally engaged in gold mining business. The Group
held 20% equity interest of Perfect Path, despite the Group held
20% the voting power in Perfect Path, however, under contractual
arrangements the Group has no significant influence over Perfect
Path, another single shareholder control the composition of the
board of directors and have control over Perfect Path. Perfect
Path indirectly owns 45% interest in a gold mine in Thailand (the
“Gold Mine”). According to Perfect Path, all relevant application
documents for obtaining the Gold Mine licences and permits were
submitted to the relevant local government authorities in Thailand,
as the relevant application is still in process, Perfect Path not
deployed their business and no income generated during the year
ended 31 December 2024. After having taken into account all
relevant economic factors, gold price and vigilantly verified it with
Perfect Path, the shareholders of Perfect Path had reached the
consensus, to proactively approach potential buyer in realising
the investment of the gold mine development so benefited by the
increasing of gold price these years so that alternative investment
opportunities can be identified to reduce investment risk due to
uncertainties.

Private Equity Investment — LNPR Group Inc. (‘LNPR”)

LNPR is a private entity incorporated in the US, which is
principally engaged in development of a “Pure Play” renewable/
alternative/distributed energy technology solutions and wastes to
resources and energy platforms. The Group held 5.18% equity
interest of LNPR. According to LNPR, they are seeking listing on
Nasdaq and already submitted the application to the authority in
the US. The Board was of the view that having equity interest in
LNPR is benefit from listing on OTC market successfully.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Listed Equity Investment — Tencent Holdings Limited
(“Tencent’)

Tencent is a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands (stock code: 700). Tencent is principally engaged in
the provision of value-added services, financial technology and
business services and online advertising services. Based on
the latest published quarterly report for the nine months ended
30 September 2024 of Tencent, the net profit for the period was
approximately RMB145,000 million comparing with the net profit
for the same period last year was approximately RMB90,198
million. The increase of net profit of Tencent was mainly due
to the increase in gross profit. Net dividend (after expenses)
approximately HK$58,000 was received from Tencent during the
year ended 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023: HK$0.6
million). The Board believed the leading position of Tencent in the
market can make them to enjoy the prosperity of internet industry,
the Group treats the investment in Tencent as the long term.

Listed Equity Investment — Winchester Holding Limited
(“Winchester”)

Winchester is a company incorporated in the US (OTC Pink:
WCHS) which is listing on OTC market in the US. Winchester is
manufacturing of cars in South Africa for production. Based on
the latest unaudited financial statements for the six months ended
30 June 2024, the net loss was approximately US$26,000. The
net assets of Winchester as at 30 June 2024 was approximately
US$422,000. No dividend was received from Winchester
during the year ended 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023:
nil). The Group would hold the investment in Winchester and
closely monitor its performance and may adjust the portfolio of
Winchester from time to time.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Listed Equity Investment — Alibaba Group Holding Limited
(“Alibaba’)

Alibaba is a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
(stock code: 9988). Alibaba is principally engaged in online retail
platform, cloud computing, digital media and entertainment. Based
on the latest published interim report for the six months ended
30 September 2024 of Alibaba, the net income for the period was
approximately RMB67,569 million comparing with the net loss for
the corresponding period was approximately RMB59,696 million.
Net dividend (after expenses) approximately HK$101,000 was
received from Alibaba during the Reporting Period (2023: nil).
The Board believed the leading position of Alibaba in the market
can make them to enjoy the prosperity of internet industry, the
Group would hold the investment in Alibaba and closely monitor
its performance and may adjust the portfolio of Alibaba from time
to time.

Listed Equity Investment — Readen Holding Corporation
(‘RHCO”)

RHCO is a company incorporated in the US (OTC Pink:
RHCO) which is listing on OTC market in the US. RHCO is a
venture capital corporation which is active in the Fintech, Online
Payment and E-commerce industries. RHCO has growth engines
which are projected to have significant growth on the revenue
in coming years as the business becomes mature. Based on
the latest unaudited financial statements for the six months
ended 31 December 2024, the net income was approximately
US$0.7 million. The total stockholders’ equity of RHCO as at 31
December 2024 was approximately US$9.2 million. No dividend
was received from RHCO during the Reporting Period (2023: nil).
The Board expects RHCO has growth engines making positive
to its financial performance. The Group would closely monitor its
performance and may adjust the portfolio of RHCO timely.

Listed Equity Investment — Sante Technology Holdings Inc.
(“'SNTE”)

SNTE is a company incorporated in the US (OTC Pink:
SNTE) which is listing on OTC market in the US which intend to
acquire and merger potential Al technology related companies by
offering the a unique platform with technology function, marketing
function, finance function and resources integration function.
No dividend was received from SNTE during the year ended 31
December 2024 (31 December 2023: N/A). The Board believed
artificial intelligence business is a future trend.
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Listed Equity Investment — Semiconductor Manufacturing
International Corporation (“SMIC”)

SMIC is a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
(stock code: 981). SMIC is principally engaged in the different
business activities, such as the computer-aided design, sales and
marketing, technical research and development, manufacturing,
testing, packaging and trading of integrated circuits and other
services, as well as designing and manufacturing semiconductor
masks, respectively. Based on the latest published interim results
for the six months ended 30 June 2024 of SMIC, the revenue
for the period was approximately US$3,651.5 million comparing
with the revenue for the same period last year was approximately
US$3,022.7 million, the profit for the period was US$235.8 million
comparing with the profit for the same period last year was
approximately US$731.3 million. No dividend was received from
SMIC during the Reporting Period (2023: nil). The Board believed
the leading position of SMIC in the market can make them to
enjoy the growth of customer demand, the Group would hold the
investment in SMIC and closely monitor its performance and may
adjust the portfolio of SMIC from time to time.

Listed Equity Investment — Xiaomi Corporation (“Xiaomi”)

Xiaomi is a China-based investment holding company
principally engaged in the research, development and sales of
smartphones, Internet of things (loTs) and lifestyle products, the
provision of Internet services, and investment business. Xiaomi
mainly conducts its businesses through four segments. The
Smartphone segment is engaged in the sales of smartphones.
The loT and Lifestyle product segment is engaged in the sales
of other in-house products, including smart televisions (TVs),
laptops, artificial intelligence (Al) speakers and smart routers;
ecosystem products, including loT and other smart hardware
products, as well as certain lifestyle products. The Internet service
segment is engaged in the provision of advertising services and
Internet value-added services. The Others segment is engaged in
the provision of repair services for its hardware products. Xiaomi
distributes its products in domestic market and to overseas
markets. Based on the latest published quarterly results for the
nine months ended 30 September 2024 of Xiaomi, the revenue for
the period was approximately RMB256,901.2 million comparing
with the revenue for the same period last year was approximately
RMB197,726.5 million, the profit for the period was RMB14,583.2
million comparing with the profit for the same period last year was
approximately RMB12,750.7 million. No dividend was received
from Xiamoi during the Reporting Period (2023: N/A). The Group
would hold the investment in Xiaomi and closely monitor its
performance and may adjust the portfolio of Xiaomi from time to
time.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Listed Equity Investment — GSG Group Inc. (“\GSGG’)

GSGG is a company incorporated in the US (OTC: GSGG)
which is listing on OTC market in the US, which is originally a
development-stage company focused on investment consultancy
for real estate in Asia, has recently expanded into the medical
devices industry. Based on the acquisition of the Prejex needle
free injection project, GSG Group Inc. is working to enter the
global markets with its Prejex specialty drug delivery systems.
These devices have been designed to provide painless,
needlefree injections for safe and effective self-administration of a
multitude of medicines and due to recent developments they plan
their first roll-outs for the US market. No dividend was received
from GSGG during the Reporting Period (2023: nil).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group employed a total
of 5 employees (2023: 2 employees), including the executive
Directors. Employees’ remuneration are fixed and determined with
reference to the market remuneration.

The remuneration policy of the Company for non-executive
Directors is to ensure that they are sufficiently compensated
for their efforts and time dedicated to the Company and that
for the employees, including the executive Directors and senior
management, is to ensure that the remuneration offered is
appropriate for the duties and in line with market practice.
The remuneration policy is to ensure that the pay levels are
competitive and effective in attracting, retaining and motivating
employees. No Director, or any of his associates, or executive is
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The key components of the Company’s remuneration
package include basic salary plus other allowances, discretionary
cash bonus and mandatory provident fund. As a long-term
incentive plan and with the aim at motivating employees in the
continued pursuit of the Company’s goal and objectives, the
Company may grant share options to subscribe for shares of the
Company to the employees (including Directors) of the Company
based on their performance and contribution to the Company
under the Company’s share option scheme (if any).
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EXPOSURES TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES AND RELATED HEDGES

The Group has no significant exposures to fluctuations
in foreign exchange rates and, therefore, did not employ any
financial instruments to hedge such exposures.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2024, no asset was pledge by the Group
(31 December 2023: nil).

MAJOR ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Group did not have any major acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the
year ended 31 December 2024.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have
other plan for material investments or acquisition of material
capital assets as at 31 December 2024.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Company have no capital commitments as at 31
December 2024 (31 December 2023: nil).
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THE REPORT

Cocoon Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group” and “we”) is principally engaged in the
provision of investment service in securities listed on recognised
stock exchanges and unlisted investments with potential for
earning growth and capital appreciation. This Environmental,
Social and Governance Report (the “ESG Report”, “Report”)
summaries the Group’s environmental, social and governance
(“ESG”) initiatives, plans and performances and demonstrates
its commitment to sustainable development. The ESG Report
specifies the ESG activities, challenges, performance, and
measures taken by the Group during the financial year ended 31
December 2024 (“Reporting Period”, “Year”, “FY2024").

Reporting Boundary

The ESG Report highlights the Group’s core business
activities in Hong Kong, incorporating ESG data collected under
the Group’s direct operational control.

Reporting Framework & Principles

This ESG Report has been prepared in compliance with
all the applicable provisions as set out in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting
Guide”) under the Appendix C2 of the Main Board Listing Rules.
The Group has applied the following reporting principles for
preparation of this ESG Report:

“Materiality”: The materiality assessment was conducted
to identity material ESG issues during the Reporting Period,
thereby adopting the confirmed material ESG topics as the focus
for the preparation of the ESG Report. Material ESG issues were
reviewed and confirmed by internal and external stakeholder
engagement.

“Quantitative”: Quantitative data with supplementary
notes are used for KPI disclosure to represent a measurable
result and to explain the standards, methodologies, and source
of conversion factors used during the calculation emissions and
energy consumption.

“Consistency”: The preparation approach of this ESG
Report is substantially consistent with methodologies applied in
previous year, and explanations are provided regarding changes
in reporting boundary.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE HERERES

Forward-looking Statements

This Report contains forward-looking statements which are
based on the current expectations, estimates, projections, beliefs,
and assumptions of the Company about the businesses and the
markets in which it and its subsidiaries operate. These forward-
looking statements are not guarantees of future performance
and are subject to market risk, uncertainties, and factors beyond
the control of the Company. Therefore, actual outcomes and
returns may differ materially from the assumptions made and the
statements contained in this Report.

Approval and Confirmation

Information included in the Report was sourced from the
official documents and statistical data of the Group. The Report
has been reviewed and approved by the Board.

Contact Us

Should you have any enquiry on this ESG Report, please
kindly contact us by email cs@cocoon.holdings.

THE GROUP SUSTAINABILITY MISSION AND
VISION

Sustainable Mission

The Group aims to unlock the potential of emerging
companies in China, Hong Kong, and beyond by making direct
investments in both private and publicly listed enterprises. Its
focus is on high-growth companies that primarily target the
domestic market.

Vision on ESG

The Group understands that it is important to build up
strong corporate governance to attract investment, protecting
the rights of shareholders and stakeholders, and enhancing
shareholder value. The Group is committed to accounting for its
shareholders with a highly transparent and open attitude, holding
a high standard in business ethics and invests in sustainable
businesses, and improving the quality of the communities and the
environment, providing long-term returns to its stakeholders.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ESG Management Strategies and the Board Statement
Oversight of ESG Issues

The board of directors (the “Board”) holds the ultimate
responsibility on monitoring the Group’s ESG issues, including
ESG management approach, strategy, and policies. To better
manage the Group’s ESG performance and identify potential risks,
the Board conducts materiality assessment where necessary
with the assistance of the ESG Taskforce (the “Taskforce”)
to evaluate and prioritise material ESG-related issues with
reference to the opinions of our stakeholders. The Board sets
up a general direction for the Group’s ESG strategies, ensuring
the effectiveness in the control of ESG risks and internal control
mechanisms.

The ESG Taskforce

The Group has established an ESG Taskforce, comprising all
members of its management team. The Taskforce is responsible
for gathering and analysing ESG related information to prepare
the ESG Report. It reports directly to the Board, assisting in
identifying and evaluating ESG risks, monitoring internal control
mechanisms, and reviewing progress toward ESG goals and
targets. The Taskforce assesses performance across areas such
as environment, health and safety, labor standards, and product
responsibilities. Additionally, it ensures compliance with ESG laws
and regulations, oversees sustainable development strategies,
mitigates potential risks, and minimises negative impacts on
business operations.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group values stakeholder engagement and feedback
on the Group business development. To improve communication
with our major stakeholders, multi-channel interaction with
the stakeholders was established, as a proactive approach
to continuously interact with key stakeholder groups for their
feedback. The key stakeholder groups include but not limited
to the Stock Exchange, government and regulatory authorities,
shareholders and investors, employees, customers, suppliers,
media and the public and the community. Diverse communication

channels are listed as below:

Stakeholders
BHE

The Stock Exchange

Bt XX P

Government and
Regulatory Authorities
BRREEHE

Shareholders and
Investors

BRERRREE

Employees

BE

Customers

BF

Suppliers

HEH

Media, Public &
Community

B ABRRHE
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Communication Channels

BERE

The Stock Exchange website

Written or electronic correspondences
Bk 32 P 408 3
EHNE

Written or electronic correspondences
Visits and government inspections
EHREFEA

BRI AR R

A

General meeting and other shareholder
meetings

Annual reports

Announcements and circulars

BREREGREMBRERRE

FH

NS S

Training

Internal meeting

= ol

MBS =

Customer service
Client meetings
B R

BEE g

Business meetings and discussion

B EE LS

ESG Report

Annual Report
Community activities
Charitable donations
BRI e kERRE
F 3R

[ E B

BEBRX

FESH
AEEERKNELAREAREEBERN
REE-RREGRIBEHOENER RMELT 8K
MENZREELY BEIBTEEEZRHGEH
BETOEPUEBSRENRE - TEHNEHEER
BErRRBRA BAREE®E RRMMREE &

8 2P HER KB ARMHR-ZHLENER
REHIRIAT

Expectations

HE

Compliance with Listing Rules and other
relevant Ordinances
#<F AR Bl K E AR B 6k 171

Compliance with local laws and regulations
Support for local economic growth

<P AR KRB

XRE ML EIE R

Investment return
Corporate governance
Business compliance

& O &
©EER

EBER

Remuneration, compensation, and benefits
Career development

- BN K A8 A

BRER

Customer privacy

Business ethic and integrity
S YN

R ERMHIE

Fair and open procurement
Relationship

YA BN

EZRES

Transparency
Corporate governance
Active participation to community development

BRE

©EEER
iR 2 B %R
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT EEMTMA

The Group’'s ESG Taskforce has participated in the AEEMNRE g RERIENASHERER
preparation of the Report to assist the Group in reviewing its RmE U AEERTEEHBRBRIRE HE
operations and identifying relevant ESG issues and assessing RErmiBfzE TAAEEZREUAEREBR
the importance of related issues to the Group’s businesses and BOENEEH BETEZHTEINZETZE-
stakeholders. Material assessment has been conducted to identify NTEEARREMSAEENERNRE HEkE
the issues. The following matrix is a summary of the Group’s AEAHNE:

material ESG topics included in this Report:

Materiality Matrix
EEMEE

High
A
Responsible Investment
BEEHIEE Safeguard Client Assets
‘ REEZPEE

&
()
% ﬁlﬂ Recruitment, Promotion and IR’Emuneration
< R HEE - B KN Indoor Air Quality
< g;\ ENEREE Data Privacy Protection
s o BB R
@ [ Development and Training
s Waste Management 3 7 2 Technology Innovation
o i L=l e E&iunﬂ‘ -
5 W R — EThw * o il
® S FH LR
Qo Anti-corruption Climate Change
£ RES one

Supply Chain Management g iccions Occupational Health and Safety

e i [ lPaN
RERER BEmn Use of Resources LESL R s
Community Participation o ERER
¢ EsE —et
» High
R Impact on Business =]
& HEBHTE

Materiality Issues Topics of 2024:
CECNFEEMEE:

1.  Responsible Investment & E KR E 9. Indoor Air Quality E N =5 &

2. Safeguard Client Assets REERF & & 10. Anti-corruption X &5

3. Data Privacy Protection & £ [Z fL (R & 11. Community Participation #f [& £ £

4.  Occupational Health and Safety B £ 2% & 12. Technology Innovation % i &1 #7

5.  Recruitment, Promotion and Remuneration {8« E7 &% Bl 13. Supply Chain Management { fig § & 12
6. Labour Standards 4 T % || 14. Emissions HE 1)

7. Development and Training 2 & N 153l 15. Use of Resources & R (¥ A

8. Climate Change R 1% 2 & 16. Waste Management % % ¥ & 3%
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RE HERERES

ENVIRONMENTAL

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group is devoted
to contributing efforts for the decarbonisation target, by taking
responsive measures such as energy efficiency actions.
Sustainability is integrated into business strategy development,
with the aim to minimise carbon footprint and strengthen the
resilience to climate-related risks.

THE GROUP’S ESG TARGETS

To support global efforts to address climate change and
to facilitate the assessment of the effectiveness of the Group’s
strategies and measures to mitigate the impacts of climate
change, environmental objectives are set at the Group level as
below in 2021. The Group is committed to achieving our ESG
targets. These targets encompass reducing pollutant emissions
and resource consumption.

Environmental Target 2025, using 2021 as baseline.

Electricity consumption Intensity

AERE BEBREYRE
| 5% (achieved) | 5% (achieved)
|5% (EER) 5% (E&EH)

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with laws and regulations relating to air and
greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions, discharges into water and
land, and the generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste
that would have a significant impact on the Group, including but
are not limited to the Air Pollution Control Ordinance and the
Waste Disposal Ordinance.
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Non-hazardous waste Intensity
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Greenhouse gas emissions Intensity

BERBHEREE

| 5% (achieved)
|5% (BEER)
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A1. EMISSIONS
Air Emissions

During the Reporting Period, the Company did not utilise
town fuel or town gas, nor did it operate motor vehicles that
emit pollutants. As a result, no emissions data is applicable for
inclusion.

GHG Emissions

The Group’s greenhouse gas emissions are primarily
attributed to electricity consumption within its office facilities,
which falls under Scope 2 indirect emissions. As the Group does
not own any vehicles, so it does not generate Scope 1 direct
emissions.

Details of GHG emissions performance are represented
below:

A1l. e
EESR HE

RE H8KRER

wE

RBEHE AL EEBRBMRE RS
TREAE BT R R B8 o B - 3 BE A R BRI

BiE-

BERBHER

AEEMNRERBFNEZREMAREHE
BREERZEHFR - BN AEETHAEEFNER H
T EELGEI RN

BERBFRRIRFBOTR:

Unit 2024 2023
Indicator(s) BE B —E-mEF e
Scope 1 — Direct GHG Emission HE1 -BEEAEREHER tCO,e N/A N/A
M| E 2 FEA i A
Scope 2 — Indirect GHG Emission  #1[E2 —RH#E B = REHENR tCO,e 1.86 1.80
—aREE
Scope 3 — Other Indirect GHG HEI - HEmEEEEREHK tCO,e 0.65 1.22
Emissions —&aitHmE=S
Total GHG Emissions BERBHMEBRE tCO.e 2.51 3.01
—EliEE
GHG Emission Intensity AERBEEENRE tCOze/mll rev 0.05 0.05*
—EliRE =
BERA
Notes: BEE
. GHG emissions data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide . BERBERBEU—_ELREELRY) WER (BT

equivalent and is based on, but no limited to, “The Greenhouse Gas
Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standards” issued
by the World Resources Institute and the World Business Council for
Sustainable Development, “How to prepare an ESG report-Appendix
2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock
Exchange, the Sustainability Report 2023 issued by Hong Kong
Electric.

. tCO.e is defined as tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent. *The data
for the 2023 has been restated.

B ERERAREAREARAABEERIFESS
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REREZTEE b¥E
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e RERBRE M
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RE HERERES

. During the Year, the Group recorded a revenue and gross proceeds
from disposal of trading securities of approximately HK$49 million
(2023: HK$63* million). *The data for the 2023 has been restated.

The data is also used for calculating other intensity data.

Sewage Discharge

The sewage discharge into land is insignificant due to the
Group business nature. During the Reporting Period, there was
no significant amount of sewage water discharged. Used water
was discharged to the municipal sewage network to the regional
water treatment plant.

Waste Management

The Group does not generate hazardous waste due to its
business nature and office-based operation. Non-hazardous
waste was mainly paper waste generated from office operation.
While the Group anticipates that non-hazardous waste will have a
minimal impact, paper-saving initiatives have been implemented
as part of its responsive measures to achieve the Group’s
decarbonisation target.

Paper consumption involves extensive tree removals,
which intensifies the magnitude of impact caused by global
warming. The Group is committed to creating a paperless working
environment at office for environmental conservation. The ESG
target is achieved by reducing paper consumption and recycling
of paper. The Group has implemented paper-saving initiatives
such as encouraging employees to use duplex printing for
internal documents and adopt environmental-friendly photocopier.
Electronic data storage is in place to minimise paper use for
record keeping. Employees are encouraged to communicate
through digital means such as sending emails to minimise
unnecessary printing and upload reports for shareholders’ access
through the internet to reduce number of printed copies.

Non-hazardous waste discharge performance is disclosed
as below:

Category of Waste BEEYESR
Total Non-Hazardous Waste BEEEYLE

— Office Paper used -MAEAK
Intensity RE

. RAEE ARERBBARBERSESFMEHRE
4278 4949,000,0005% T ( =2 = = 4 : 63,000,000 /%
L) R CFHBEER - Z BB AR EAR
1t 52 F B

JEOKBERK

AR AEEEBEE  FALHMASKRD R
HMAEHRE W EFRAEGT K- FERABNKERET
5K E 48 5 [ 45 7K BE PR IR o

BEREYEHE

HRAEBNEBUHERERNPLAZTEE H
VTEELAERREY - BEEBEEVNIZ/NRA
ErNER - BEAEERNEZTERYNOZERN
FEM AEECERGOBEEEBEEAERAEHE
% B IR FEE R 1 o

I bt
i
ﬁ \|

RESRREREBA - EME T 2RBERE
KT ERE - AKRERNRERAERIE —EEK
LN TEREARERRE - RE L RERBER
BROABEMERDOWRER AEB BRSO
MERTE - PlansEh (B 8 51 EN R E SIS SR B2 E 51 ) -
VEHRARRENK EREFHRBEFRAZTERDT
BAR-ZBEEBBHFINETER MBEXE
FERELNRD T L ERFIE AKEBBE B L ER
HHERE R AR A ENR R E & -

BEEEERMFMREWNTRE:

Unit 2024 2023
B —E-_NF —E-=
kg
Fr 135.87 253.49
kg/million rev 2.75 4.00*
T,/ B &RA

*

The data for year 2023 has been restated.
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A2. Use of Resources

The Group is committed to preserving the natural assets
through improving efficiency of resources consumption. To
prevent excessive use of resources and enhance sustainability
performance, the Group has formulated proactive measures with
environmental conscious to achieve this goal.

Energy Management

The Group’s primary source of energy consumption
is electricity used for office operations. To participate as a
responsible corporate citizen, the Group endeavours to pursue
green office practices and cultivates green corporate culture, with
the target to minimise electricity consumption.

The Group has set the goal to reduce energy consumption
intensity by 5% in the next 4 years, with FY2021 as the base year
for comparison. This ESG goal is achieved by the implementation
of energy-saving measures such as adjusting the temperature of
air conditioners at a reasonable level, conducting routine checks
for electrical appliances and turning off computers when they are
not in use.

Performance of energy consumption is summarised as
below:

Indicator(s) BE
Direct energy HIEZERR
Indirect energy 5 88 R

— Electricity =
Total Energy Consumption RREEEE

Intensity RE

RE -HEREREH

A2, ERER

AEEF IR BERSEREAEIERELSR
BE - RBPHILAEFRERMEANFERR KA
AEBEHETAERRESANEREGBERERE—BZ-

FEIR B HE
AEBRERERNIEZRRAMABE - BK

R—EBEENEEAR AEEBHELZEHRA

A EBHECEXL URERIBERBREZ-

AEEBRTEE URZTEZ—UFARLIREE
EE RROFaERBEEZER 5% cHIRB LR
SR E R BBEREEERERER NEEFAAE
Iimiﬂﬁk CHWERETHITRE ETEAE
KRR E R -

U Hﬂ}?

Fch/ /ﬁ %%%EE*EE QHT

Unit 2024 2023
B —E-mEF =5 —=

kWh N/A N/A

TR B FEA i A
kWh

TR B 2,813 2,640

kWh 2,813 2,640
T L

kWh/million rev 56.98 41.62*
FRE,/B&8HBA

* The data for the 2023 has been restated.

Water Consumption

The Group’s water usage is mainly used for domestic
cleaning in office and providing drinking water. The Group
encourages our employees to have water conversation concepts
such as reminding them to turn off the water tap after uses. As
the water supply and drainage facilities of the Group’s our offices
are managed by the property management company, the Group
was unable to access water consumption records during the Year.
Due to the business nature and operating locations, the Group
does not encounter any significant issues in sourcing water that is
fit for purpose.

* CEC-FHEBESM-

K

AEEAKEZARBAZTERNFT R RIEER
AK-ANEBEHEREREBHOR KOS WIZER
EFEREBEKESE - ARAEB R EHHES K
RERYFEERRAERE AEERAFEEELEH
Ktk AR E ML KA & 2 7N & F 72 KA
AEXKRSTETEBI(EMENEE-
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RE HERERES

Use of Packaging Materials

During the Reporting Period, the Group does not record any
consumption of packing materials due to its business nature.

A3. The Environment and Natural Resources
Impact on the Environment and Natural Resources

The business activities conducted by the Group does not
bring significant impact on the environment and natural resources
due to its office operation. The Group will stay resilient for
environmental protection, minimising environmental degradation
and harmful impacts on biodiversity.

Indoor Air Quality

Indoor air quality in the workplace is regularly monitored and
measured. The Group maintains indoor air quality by installing air
purification equipment in workplace and cleaning air-conditioning
systems regularly to filter pollutants and dust. Green plants are
also placed in offices to improve the overall air quality.

A4. Climate Change
Climate Change Mitigation and Adaptation

The Group recognises the importance of the identification
and mitigation of significant climate-related issues, therefore
closely monitors the potential impact of climate change on
our business and operations. In accordance with the reporting
framework developed by the Task Force on Climate-related
Financial Disclosures (“TCFD”), there are two major categories
of climate-related risks, physical and transition risks. During the
Reporting Period, climate-related risks have been embedded into
the Group’s risk management system, and relevant mitigation
measures have also been formulated.

Physical Risks

Global statistics indicate an increasing frequency and
intensity of extreme weather events, such as typhoons, storms,
heavy rainfall, and extreme temperatures. These changes pose
chronic risks to the Group’s business operations, including the
impact of frequent typhoons and flooding. Under severe typhoon
signals, particularly typhoon signal No. 8 or higher, employee
safety is at risk and business operations must be suspended,
resulting in delays in performance.
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The Group has set out an emergency plan attached in the
Staff Handbook to ensure employees understand their rights,
staff do not need to go to work under specific extreme weather
regarding local regulations. Regular reviews of the emergency
plan will be conducted to assure business stability.

Transition Risks

To achieve the global vision of carbon neutrality, the Group
anticipates changes in regulations, technology, and market due
to climate change, including the stricter policies, listing rules
and environmental taxes. These developments may increase
compliance costs and legal risks, potentially impacting the
Group’s reputation.

In response to the policy and legal risks as well as the
reputation risks, the Group constantly monitors changes in laws
and global trends on climate change. In addition, the Group has
been taking comprehensive environmental protection measures,
including targets to gradually reduce energy consumption and
setting GHG emissions.

SOCIAL
B1. Employment

The Group values employees as an important assets. The
Group offers competitive remuneration, promotional opportunity,
compensation, and benefits packages to attract and retain
talents. We have established a Remuneration Committee, which
regularly reviews our remuneration policy. The Remuneration
Committee ensures packages offered by the Group are appealing
to employees and in line with the market trend.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with employment-related laws and regulations
that would have a significant impact on the Group, including but
not limited to the Employment Ordinance, the Minimum Wage
Ordinance, the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance, the Sex
Discrimination Ordinance, and the Disability Discrimination
Ordinance of Hong Kong.
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RE HERERES

As of 31 December 2024, there was only 5 employees
(2023: 2 employees) located at Hong Kong. The table below
shows the employee details of the Group.

Indicator(s) EE

Total number of employees EEHBE
By Gender 71 Bl
Male 3

Female z

By Age Group REwRAR
Below 31 years old 31 A T
31-45 years old 31E455%
Above 45 years old 4555 LA

HE_Z_-_NMF+-_A=+—H E5%(=Z
TZERB)REMREB - TRIRAEENEE

IR

2024 2023
—E_MF -2 =
5 2
3 2
2 0
0 0
2 0
3 2

During the Reporting Period, no employee left the Company.
The employee turnover rate is 0% (2023: 0%). Details are
disclosed as below.

Indicator(s) EE

By Gender 1214 Bl
Male 5

Female z

By Age Group R EwRAR
Below 31 years old 1B AT
31-45 years old 31E455%
Above 45 years old 4555 LA £

RBEMEAN ARARTEESHEB -EERKX
ERO% (T -=F:0%) - FBHREMOT -

2024 2023
—E-@F =T —

Recruitment, Promotion, and Remuneration

The Group adopts a fair and transparent recruitment
process, focusing on candidates experience and expertise,
without any bias. Employees are assessed based on their abilities
to meet the Group’s current and future needs. The recruitment
process is periodically reviewed to ensure effectiveness.
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Employee promotion and career development are based
on contribution and aligned with the recruitment process. Annual
performance appraisals and salary reviews determine adjustments
and promotion opportunities. Employees receive written and
verbal evaluations yearly to recognise their efforts and provide
constructive feedback. Remuneration packages are tailored to
job-related skills, qualifications, and performance, with mandatory
provident funds provided in compliance with regulations.

Equal Opportunities, Diversity, and Anti-discrimination

The Group values employment diversity as a cornerstone of
corporate sustainability. Talent acquisition focuses on experience
and expertise, ensuring equal employment opportunities for all.
The Group fosters an inclusive working environment, free from
discrimination, harassment, victimisation, and vilification.

Equal opportunities are given to employees in respect of
recruitment, training and development, job advancement, and
compensation and benefits. Employees are not discriminated
against or deprived of equal opportunities regarding gender,
ethnic background, religion, race, sexual orientation, marital
status, family status, retirement, disability, pregnancy, or any
other discrimination prohibited by applicable law.

The Group emphasises on cultural diversity. Talent
acquisition includes employees from a wide range of ages,
gender, and ethnicities. To strengthen corporate governance
structure, culture of Board diversity is integrated into the Board
composition, which consists of members with a wide variety of
skill, industry knowledge and expertise, experience, educational
background, and other qualities without discrimination.

Working Hours and Rest Days

The Group has formulated policies on working hours
and rest days to comply with local employment regulations.
Employees under continuous contract are entitled to rest days
and statutory holidays. Leave entitlements include annual leave,
sick leave, maternity leave, paternity leave, compensation leave,
compassionate leave, and wedding leave, to safeguard employee
rights and benefits.

RE -HEREREH

EEEANBEZRRDENEEEHMIFTA
BRF - BEFEEMFIEMNFLEL BEHEM
ENRE - EESFEX —REENMOBENG A
RAEMH UREZRLEER - F S5 ERITER
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RE HERERES

Compensation and Dismissal

All employees are covered under the Employees’
Compensation Ordinance of Hong Kong upon joining the Group.
Work injury are compensated as per government regulations and
compulsory insurance. Dismissal are strictly based on reasonable
and lawful grounds, supported by the Group’s internal policies.
The Employee Handbook includes a list of major offences
warranting immediate dismissal.

Other Benefits and Welfare

The Group offers attractive benefits and welfare to
retain talented candidates and to build up employee loyalty.
Additional employee welfares include office insurance, employee
compensation insurance, directors, and officers (D&O) liability
insurance, discretionary bonuses. The Group will continue
to provide its employees with a well-structured and caring
environment, to enhance their sense of belonging and work
efficiency for future development.

B2. Health and Safety
Occupational Health and Safety

Employee health and safety are always the top priority of
the Group. With this regard, the Group reinforced the health and
safety-related measures to minimise workplace accidents. As an
investment holding company, the Group faces lower occupational
health and safety risk but still implements precautionary measures
to ensure employee safety.

The Group recorded zero work-related fatalities from
FY2021 to FY2024 and recorded no lost working days due to work
injury within the Year. During the Year, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with health and safety-related
laws and regulations, including but not limited to the Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance and the Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance of Hong Kong.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B3. Development and Training

The Group values employee development and recognises
their contribution. To facilitate employee career advancement, the
Group provides training programs tailored to specific needs.

The package offered by the Group in relation to development
and training includes training covering topics of business
operations, policy, and procedures of the Group, statutory and
regulatory obligations of being a director. Ongoing training,
briefings, and seminars will also be provided to staff after the
induction to refresh their professional knowledge and skills.

During the Reporting Period, 100% (2023: 100%) of
employees received training and total training hours is 20 hours
(2023: 35 hours). The employee’s training data is as below.

B B RERES
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2024 2023
ZEZQWF ZEZ=F

Percentage Average Percentage Average

of employees training hours of employees  training hours

trained (%) (hours) trained (%) (hours)

ZiES 15 55 3 RilEE T

Indicator(s) BE B2t (%) B g (/M) A (%) B (/)

By Gender % 1 Bl

Male 3 100 4 100 IS

Female 4 100 4 - —
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Senior Management EHREREAB 100 4 100 17-5

Management ERE 100 4 - -
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RE HERERES

B4. Labour Standards
Prevention of Child and Forced Labour

The Group has zero tolerance for the recruitment of child
labour and forced labour. Candidates are required to provide
identification cards and original certificates for verification.
Employment contracts are established to ensure compliance with
labor regulations. Any violations result in immediate contract
termination and investigation, with further actions as needed.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with laws and regulations
regarding child and forced labour, including but not limited to
the Employment of Children Regulations and the Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong.

B5. Supply Chain Management

The Group primarily procures local office supplies such as
drinking water, paper, and stationery.

The Group has established a supplier selection system
that prioritises business scale and reputation. To enhance the
supply chain system, the Group incorporates ESG considerations,
including environmental and social factors, into its management
strategy. Suppliers are required to protect employee rights,
maintain a discrimination-free workplace, and comply with labor
standards. They must also adhere to ethical business practices
and anti-corruption regulations. The Group conducts supplier
assessments and ensures a fair selection process by obtaining
multiple quotations.

Green Procurement

The Group strives to maintain a high level of sustainability
and has implemented procurement policies to improve green
practices. To reduce emissions and their impact on air quality and
community well-being, the Group prioritizes local procurement to
minimise transportation needs.
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B6. Product Responsibility

As an investment company listed on the MAIN board of the
Stock Exchange under Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules, the Group
focuses on investment holdings, principally in securities listed on
recognised stock exchanges and unlisted investments with growth
potential. Product responsibility issues including health and
safety, advertising, labelling relating to products and customer
services are not applicable to the Group.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with laws and regulations that would have
a significant impact on the Group, including but not limited
to the Trade Descriptions Ordinance and the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance of Hong Kong, concerning health and safety,
advertising, labelling, and privacy matters relating to products and
services and methods of redress.

As stated in the Group’s Employee Manual strictly prohibits
disclosing insider information to a third party, ensuring consumer
data and privacy protected. Employees are required to read and
adhere to the Manual. During the Year, the Group did not receive
any products-or service-related complaints.

The Group safeguards its intellectual property rights by
registering domain names in Hong Kong. Such domain name
is renewed upon its expiration. The Group understands and
complies with the intellectual property rights regulations.

The Group is dedicated to responsible investment practices
that protect investors’ assets. We conduct thorough research
to identify opportunities offering strong financial returns while
minimising risk. By adopting a disciplined approach to asset
selection and portfolio management, we safeguard investments
and promote long-term growth. Our team closely monitors market
trends and economic developments to make informed decisions
that enhance investor value.
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RE HERERES

B7. Anti-corruption

The Group upholds the highest standards of business
conduct with zero tolerance for corruption or malpractice.
Employees and business partners are informed of the Group’s
anti-corruption policy requirements. All personnel policy must
adhere to relevant anti-bribery and corruption laws including the
“Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the Laws of
Hong Kong)”. Management has undergone anti-corruption training,
enhancing awareness and commitment to ethical practices.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations regarding bribery extortion, fraud and money
laundering that would have a significant impact on the Group,
including but not limited to the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance.
During the Reporting Period, there was no concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or its
employees.

Whistle-blowing Policy

The Group encourages employees to report alleged
malpractices or misconduct through various channels.
Management promptly investigates reported issues to prevent
misconduct including bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering. Clear procedures are in place to ensure confidentiality
and protect whistle-blowers from adverse consequences. This
policy promotes transparency, accountability, and integrity by
addressing concerns such as fraud, harassment, or safety
violations. By creating a safe environment for employees to speak
up, the Group effectively mitigates risks and upholds ethical
standards.

B8. Community Investment

The Group is committed to supporting the community
through social engagement and charitable contributions. As part
of its corporate social responsibility, the Group participates in
community programs that benefit society and cultivate a positive
corporate culture. Employees are encouraged to contribute by
volunteering to assist those in need.
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
during the Reporting Period are investments in securities listed
on recognised stock exchanges and unlisted investments
with a potential for earnings growth and capital appreciation.
The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s revenue for the Reporting Period comprised
dividend income.

Trading of trading securities is also a principal activity of the
Group, the figures of the gross proceeds from disposals of trading
securities are disclosed in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Company and a
discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance during the
Reporting Period and the material factors underlying its results
and financial position are provided in the “Chairman’s Statement”
and “Management Discussion & Analysis” from pages 4 to 5 and
pages 6 to 18 of this annual report respectively. The outlook
of the Company’s business is discussed in the “Chairman
Statement” from pages 4 to 5 of this annual report. Description of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company can be
found throughout this annual report particularly in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements. Particulars of important events
affecting the Company that have occurred since the end of the
financial year 2024 can be found in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements. Environmental policies and performance are
discussed in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
from pages 19 to 36 of this annual report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s investments are partially carried out by the
Company’s subsidiaries established in the British Virgin Islands
and Hong Kong while the Company itself was incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands with limited liability and continued in Bermuda
with limited liability with its shares listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange. Our establishment and operations accordingly
shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in the Bermuda,
the British Virgin Islands and Hong Kong.

During the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the
date of this annual report, we have complied in material respects
with the relevant rules, laws and regulations in the Cayman
Islands, where applicable, and Bermuda, the British Virgin Islands
and Hong Kong that have a significant impact on the Group.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

As the Group principally engages in investments in listed
and unlisted securities, no specific customers or suppliers will be
involved in the operation of business. The investee companies
and the investment manager are good working partners creating
value for the Group. The Group also values the knowledge and
skills of its employees, and continues to provide favourable career
development opportunities for its employees.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 81.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 83 and note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

No property, plant and equipment held by the Group and the
Company as at 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

No distributable reserve of the Company at 31 December
2024, according to the Companies Act of Bermuda.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws or applicable laws of Bermuda.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 148.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SHARES

The Company did not redeem any of its listed shares
during the Reporting Period. Neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company’s listed
shares during the Reporting Period.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) at its annual general meeting held
on 17 June 2022. The purposes of the Share Option Scheme
are to provide incentives to the participants, and to recognise
their contributions made and to be made to the growth and
development of the Group.

All Directors (including executive Directors, non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors) and
employees of the Company and its subsidiaries and consultants,
advisors, agents, customers, service providers, contractors,
business partners of any member of the Group in the sole
discretion of the Board, has contributed to the Group or any
member of it are eligible to participate in the Share Option
Scheme.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 17 June 2022, the total
number of shares of the Company which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
shall not in aggregate exceed 4,316,722 (after capital reorganisation)
shares of the Company, which amounted to approximately 5.08% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2024.
The Share Option Scheme will remain in force until 16 June 2032,
so the remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is approximately
seven years and three months as at the date of this report.
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After the Reporting Period, the Board granted to certain eligible
participants a total of 4,316,722 share options to subscribe for a total
of 4,316,722 ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as the placing new shares under the heading “Placing
of New Shares” and the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares
or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will
or may result in the Company issues shares were entered into
during the year or subsisted at the end of the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the
date of this report were:

Wu Ming Gai

Chau Wai Hing

Chan Man Yi (resigned on 1 August 2024)
Leung Yin Ting

Wong Sze Lok

Lin Hsiu Mei (appointed on 1 August 2024)

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”)
and with the recommendation of the nomination committee of the
Company (“Nomination Committee”), Dr. Wong Sze Lok and Ms.
Leung Yin Ting, being the longest in office and determined by lot,
shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company.

Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy
shall hold office only until the first annual general meeting of the
Company after his/her appointment and be subject to re-election
at such meeting, thus, Ms. Lin Hsiu Mei shall retire and eligible
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

Ms. Lin Hsiu Mei, Ms. Leung Yin Ting and Dr. Wong Sze Lok
are independent non-executive Directors.

The Company has received annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors as regards
their independence of the Company and considers that each of
the independent non-executive Directors is independent of the
Company.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with any member of the Company which is not determinable within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Mr. Wu Ming Gai’s interest in contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no other transactions,
arrangements or other contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company, or its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a director of the Company or his connected
entities had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the Reporting Period or at any time during
the Reporting Period.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Bye-Laws provides that every Director shall be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all liability
incurred by him as such director in defending any proceedings,
whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in his favour,
or in which he is acquitted.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liabilities
and costs associated with defending any proceedings which may
be brought against the Directors and officers of the Company and
its subsidiaries. Such insurance was in force during the Reporting
Period and remained in force as of the date of this annual report.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Brief biographical details of Directors are set out below:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wu Ming Gai, aged 49, joined the Company in July
2015. He was re-designated from a non-executive Director to an
executive Director effective from 1 March 2016 and appointed as
the chairman (the “Chairman”) of the Board in February 2019 and
ceased to be the Chairman with effect from 1 December 2022.
He is also a director of each subsidiary of our Company. Mr. Wu
is one of the directors and responsible officers of Tiger Securities
Asset Management Company Limited (“Tiger Securities”) (as
the investment manager of the Company since 1 March 2016).
Mr. Wu is currently licensed under the Securities and Futures
Commission (“SFC”) to carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities),
Type 4 (advising on securities) and Type 9 (assets management)
regulated activities accredited to Tiger Securities. He has obtained
the Honor Diploma of Accounting from the Hong Kong Shue Yan
University in July 1999. He has over 13 years of management
experience in fund accounting and asset management. He was
the chief operating officer of Tiger Securities from 2007 to 2012
responsible for the overall operation of fund management. Since
2013, he has been the director of the same company responsible
for the general management of regulated activities.
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Mr. Chau Wai Hing, aged 59, was appointed as executive
Director and a member of investment committee of the Board on
23 April 2021 and re-designated as chairman of the investment
committee of the Board with effect from 20 June 2022. Mr.
Chau has taken up the position as the Chairman with effect
from 1 December 2022. Mr. Chau possesses over 30 years
of experience in banking, finance and wealth management
and held executive positions at several international financial
institutions and listed companies. Mr. Chau graduated from City
University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’'s Degree in Quantitative
Analysis for Business, Postgraduate Certificate in Professional
Accounting and Master Degree in Finance. He also holds a
Master Degree in Professional Accounting from the Southern
Cross University in Australia. Mr. Chau is a fellow member of the
Institute of Public Accountants in Australia, a fellow member of
the Institute of Financial Accountants, a chartered member of the
Chartered Institute for Securities and Investment and a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute.
Mr. Chau previously joined the Company as a non-executive
Director and an executive Director for the period from July 2015
to September 2015 and September 2015 to February 2019
respectively. Mr. Chau was a licensed person to carry out type
1 (dealing in securities), type 4 (advising on securities) and type
9 (asset management) regulated activities under the SFO from
July 2020 to April 2021. Mr. Chau is currently an independent
non-executive director of abc Multiactive Limited (stock code:
8131) since October 2023 and an executive director of UBA
Investments Limited (stock code: 768) since September 2021.
He was an independent non-executive director of Carnival Group
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 996) from May 2019
to December 2023, a company incorporated in the Bermuda with
limited liability and the listing of the shares were cancelled on
7 December 2023 and was ordered to be wound up by the High
Court of Hong Kong on 23 August 2022, Vestate Group Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 1386) from February 2017 to March 2021
and he was also an executive director of UBA Investments Limited
(Stock code: 768) from December 2008 to April 2015.
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Independent Non-executive Directors:

Ms. Lin Hsiu Mei, aged 63, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, member of each of the
audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) and remuneration committee (the
“‘Remuneration Committee”) of the Company on 1 August 2024.
She is obtained a bachelor of commerce degree in Accounting
from Tam Kang University and a master of commerce degree
in Accounting from Soochow University. She also obtained the
qualification of certified public accountant in Taiwan and the
PRC in 1986 and 1997 respectively. She possesses extensive
experience in accounting, auditing and finance. Ms. Lin is
currently a licensed person to carry out type 6 (advising on
corporate finance) regulated activities under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“SFQ”). She has served as an independent non-executive director
of The First Insurance Co., Ltd., the shares of which are listed on
The Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation (stock code: 2852) since
27 June 2019.

Ms. Leung Yin Ting, aged 43, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, member of each of the Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee on 14 December 2018.
She was appointed as a member of the Nomination Committee of
the Company on 17 June 2022 and re-designated as the chairlady
of the Nomination Committee on 1 August 2024. Ms. Leung is a
barrister in Hong Kong and was called to the Bar of Hong Kong
in 2013. She is currently a member of HKICPA and has achieved
the specialist qualification in insolvency of HKICPA in 2016.
Ms. Leung obtained a Bachelor degree of Laws from University
of Warwick, the United Kingdom in 2004, and Postgraduate
Certificate in Laws from the University of Hong Kong in 2006.
Before pursuing her career in Law, she has more than four years’
audit experience in the Big Four accounting firms in Hong Kong.
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Dr. Wong Sze Lok, aged 52, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, a chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee on 23 April 2021. Dr. Wong was appointed as
a member of Audit Committee on 17 June 2022 and re-
designated as the chairman of the Audit Committee on 1 August
2024. He has extensive experience in auditing and corporate
governance. Dr. Wong was the chief financial officer of Century
Entertainment International Holdings Limited (formerly known
as Amax International Holdings Limited) (Stock code: 959), the
financial controller of Guoan International Limited (Stock code:
143), an independent non-executive director of Grand Field
Group Holdings Limited (Stock code: 115), a Company Secretary
of Unitas Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8020) from August
2018 to April 2024. Dr. Wong is currently an independent non-
executive director of TBK & Sons Holdings Limited (Stock code:
1960), China e-wallet Payment Group Limited (Stock code: 802),
Aowei Holding Limited (Stock code: 1370) and IVD Medical
Holding Limited (Stock code: 1931). Dr. Wong also serves as
the company secretary of Wai Hung Group Holdings Limited
(Stock code: 3321). Dr. Wong obtained a bachelor of arts degree
in accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
November 1996, a master of management degree from Macquarie
University in November 2004, a certificate of higher education in
Law from University of Essex in December 2021 and an executive
doctor of business administration from Sabi University in
December 2024. Dr. Wong is currently a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow of The Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and a Certified
Information Systems Auditor.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2024, none of the Directors or the chief
executive (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company had,
nor were they taken to or deemed to have under Part XV of the
SFO, any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) or any
interests which are required to be entered into the register kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of the Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) to the Listing Rules.

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2024
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors or chief executives (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company (including their
spouse and children under 18 years of age) to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporates.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2024, the Company had been notified of the
following substantial shareholders’ interests and short position, being
5% or more of the Company’s shares and underlying shares which are
required to be recorded in the register of interests in shares and short
positions maintained under Section 336 of the SFO:

R-ZE-WNFE+-_A=+—HB R(BFLHE
fGBI) E3B6HABEF 2R AR BERMET -
ARAREMEATIERREG AR BRN REER
DE5% A EZ EFXE

Percentage of total
issued shares of the
Company as at

31 December 2024

EE AT
R-ZE-F
Number of ordinary +=A=+—8H
Name of shareholders Capacity/Nature of Interests shares held ZERITRA
BREEEEB B REmtE FEEEERHE BB
Yu Po Kwan Beneficial owner/ 6,879,400 (L) 8.10%
Beneficial interest
RER EnEBAN EmEn
Solution Smart Holdings Limited Beneficial owner/ 517,400 (L) 0.61%
Beneficial interest (Notes 1 & 2)
BEAAN Enk (HiaE1702)
SW Venture Asia Limited Interest in a controlled corporation/ 517,400 (L) 0.61%
Corporate interest (Notes 1 & 2)
REslEE R LB (KiaE1/02)
Yeung Shing Wai Interest in a controlled corporation/ 517,400 (L) 0.61%
Corporate interest (Notes 1 & 2)
5B (2 Rt EEER B (KiaE1/02)
(L) — Long Position (L) — &
(S) — Short Position (S) —#E
Notes: hza
1. Solution Smart Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the 1. Solution Smart Holdings Limited J5 — 5 i 3 & iz 22 Bf

S 2 BBRAR  HSW Venture Asia Limited
2 & ¥ A > SW Venture Asia Limited J3 — KA H &
REBESAMRIZERAR BEXKELELZEE

A AL BIE(EFRBAERD) - HELE
K SW Venture Asia Limited %8 % Solution Smart
Holdings Limited Fi$5 A 2 IR0 R #E B #E o

British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by
SW Venture Asia Limited. SW Venture Asia Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, which is
wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Yeung Shing Wai. Accordingly,
Mr. Yeung Shing Wai and SW Venture Asia Limited are deemed to
be interested in the Shares held by Solution Smart Holdings Limited
under the SFO.
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2. Following the completion of the Rights Issue in October 2019,
the Placing in June 2021, July 2022, July 2023, May 2024 and
September 2024, the Company had not received any notifications
of disclosure of interests from those shareholders reporting the
change in percentage of shares. Based on the issued shares as at
31 December 2024, the percentage level of those shareholders had

been reduced to below 5%.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, the
Company has not been notified of any other interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which had been recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Details of significant management contracts in relation to the
Company’s business are set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no other contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Reporting Period.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group is an investment holding company. In the opinion
of the Directors, it is therefore of no value to disclose details of
the Group’s customers and suppliers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2024 which also constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules, are disclosed in note 31(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

During the Reporting Period, the above-mentioned
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
are constituted exempted transactions under chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules which were carried out and disclosed in compliance
with the relevant requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Changes in directors’ information in respect of the period
between the publication date of the 2024 interim report of the
Company and this report, which are required to be disclosed
pursuant to the requirement of Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules
are set out in the section of “Biographical Details Of Directors”
and “Board of Directors” of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee of the
Company’s is composed of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Dr. Wong Sze Lok (Chairman), Ms. Lin Hsiu
Mei and Ms. Leung Yin Ting. It reports directly to the Board
and reviews matters within the scope of audit, such as financial
statements and internal controls, to protect the interests of the
Company’s shareholders.

The Audit Committee meets regularly with the Company’s
external auditor, to discuss audit process and accounting issues,
and reviews effectiveness of internal controls and risk evaluation.
Written terms of reference, which describes the authority and
duties of the Audit Committee are regularly reviewed and
updated by the Board. The terms of reference is available on the
Company’s website and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters
including review and approval of the annual results and annual
report for the year ended 31 December 2024.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the
date of this report, there is sufficient public float of not less than
25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under the
Listing Rules.
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AUDITOR 2D
The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the AEBEBE-_T-_NF+_A=+—HIEFE
year ended 31 December 2024 have been audited by McMillan 2 BEREHEET (BB GHAEEMERAR (IR
Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited (“McMillan Woods”). A resolution FEZ - EARAEERRBEFAS LBESRE)
will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of HEOUBERSTAANDAIMZEAE -
the Company to re-appoint McMillan Woods as the auditor of the
Company.
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE HREBHEREER
Details of significant events occurring after the reporting WMEARBEANEASTENFBIANGE Y
date are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial R M ISR -
statements.
By order of the Board HEEEm
Cocoon Holdings Limited FEXSERBRADAE
Chau Wai Hing B
Chairman BAiEHE
Hong Kong, 31 March 2025 BEE ZT-RFE=A=+—H
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Maintaining high standards of corporate governance in
everything we do.

Sound corporate governance practices are crucial to the
smooth, effective and transparent operation of a company and
its ability to attract investment, protect rights of shareholders and
stakeholders, and enhance shareholder value. The Company is
committed to high standards of corporate governance with a view
to being transparent, open and accountable to our shareholders.

The Company has adopted all the code provisions in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix
C1 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities of the Stock
Exchange as its own code on corporate governance practices.

The Company had met the relevant code provisions set out
in the Code during the Reporting Period, except the following
deviations:

Code provision C.2.1 of part 2 of the Code provides that
the roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual.

The chief executive officer of the Company has been vacant
following the resignation of Ms. Chan Carman Wing Yan on 20
June 2022. Until the appointment of new chief executive officer,
the executive Directors continue to oversee the day-to-day
management of the business and operations of the Group.

Code Provision C.1.6 of part 2 of the Code provides that
independent non-executive directors and other non-executive
directors should attend general meetings to gain and develop
a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. The
independent non-executive Directors, Ms. Leung Yin Ting and Ms.
Chan Man Yi, the former independent non-executive Director, did
not attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 27
June 2024 due to other commitments.

The Board will continue to monitor and review the
Company’s corporate governance practices to ensure compliance
with the Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CULTURES AND VALUES

A healthy corporate culture across the Group is integral
to attain its vision and strategy. It is the Board’s role to foster a
corporate culture with the following core principles and to ensure
that the Company’s vision, values and business strategies are
aligned to it.

1. Integrity and code of conduct

The Group strives to maintain high standards of business
ethics and corporate governance across all our activities and
operations. The Directors, management and staff are all required
to act lawfully, ethically and responsibly, and the required
standards and norms are explicitly set out in the training materials
for all new staff and embedded in various policies such as the
Group’s employee handbook (including therein the Group’s code
of conduct), the anti-corruption policy and the whistleblowing
policy of the Group. Trainings are conducted from time to time to
reinforce the required standards in respect of ethics and integrity.

2. Commitment

The Group believes that the culture of commitment to
workforce development, workplace safety and health, diversity,
and sustainability is one where people have a feeling of
commitment and emotional engagement with the Group’s mission.
This sets the tone for a strong, productive workforce that attracts,
develops, and retains the best talent and produces the highest
quality work. Moreover, the Company’s strategy in the business
development and management are to achieve long-term, steady
and sustainable growth, while having due considerations from
environment, social and governance aspects.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board is comprised
two executive Directors, Mr. Chau Wai Hing, acts as Chairman
and Mr. Wu Ming Gai. The Company has three independent
non-executive Directors, Ms. Lin Hsiu Mei, Ms. Leung Yin Ting
and Dr. Wong Sze Lok, representing more than one-third of the
Board. Dr. Wong Sze Lok, Ms. Lin Hsiu Mei and Ms. Leung Yin
Ting all have appropriate professional accounting experience and
expertise.
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During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report, the changes to the composition of the Board were
as follows:

- Ms. Chan Man Yi resigned as independent non-
executive Director, the chairlady of each of the Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee and member of
the Remuneration Committee on 1 August 2024.

- Ms. Lin Hsiu Mei was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, the member of each of
the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee.

All Directors have distinguished themselves in their field
of expertise, and have exhibited high standards of personal and
professional ethics and integrity. The biographical details of each
Director are disclosed on pages 42 to 45 of this annual report.

As at 31 December 2024, the Board composition comprises
two female Directors. The Board would continue to maintain at
least one female Director on the Board.

The Board’s composition is in compliance with the
requirement under Rule 3.10A and Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules
that the number of independent non-executive Directors must
represent at least one-third of the Board and at least one of them
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise. In order to ensure that
independent views and input of the independent non-executive
Directors are made available to the Board, the Nomination
Committee and the Board are committed to assess the Directors’
independence annually with regards to all relevant factors
related to the independent non-executive Directors including the
following:

- required character, integrity, expertise, experience and
stability to fulfill their roles;

- time commitment and attention to the Company’s
affairs;

- firm commitment to their independent roles and to the
Board;

- declaration of conflict of interest in their roles as
independent non-executive Directors;
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- no involvement in the daily management of the
Company nor in any relationship or circumstances
which would affect the exercise of their independent
judgment; and

- the Chairman meets with the independent non-
executive Directors regularly without the presence of
the executive Directors.

Each independent non-executive Director has pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, confirmed that he/she is
independent of the Company and the Company also considers
that they are independent.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family
or other material relationship) between members of the Board.

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws, the Directors shall hold office
subject to retirement by rotation at the annual general meeting
of the Company at least once every three years and eligible for
re-election.

The term of office of each of non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) is for a period of
three years, subject to retirement by rotation.

Responsibilities of the Board and Management

The Board, headed by the Chairman, is responsible for
providing high-level guidance and effective oversight of the
management of the Company, formulation and approval of the
Group’s development and business strategies and policies,
approval of annual budgets, financial results and business plans,
recommendation of dividend, and supervision of management in
accordance with the provisions set out in the Bye-Laws.
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The executive Directors are responsible for day-to-
day management of the Company’s operations. They conduct
regular meetings with the management of the subsidiaries of the
Company, at which operational issues and financial performance
are evaluated.

The Company views well-developed and timely reporting
systems and internal controls are essential, and the Board plays a
key role in the implementation and monitoring of internal controls
and risk management.

The Board has established procedure to enable Directors,
upon reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Matters specifically decided by the Board and those
reserved for the management, such as daily management,
administration and operation of the Company, etc. with respective
level of authorities with regard to key corporate strategy, policy
and contractual commitments, are reviewed by the Board. The
management shall report back to the Board.

The Bye-Laws contain description of responsibilities and
operation procedures of the Board. The Board holds regular
meeting and listens to the operating reports of the Company and
makes policies. Significant operating policies of the Company
have to be discussed and passed by the Board. Board meetings
include regular meetings as defined in the Code and other
meetings when necessary. The Board meets formally at least four
times a year.

Besides regular and other meetings, the Board obtains
adequate information through working meetings, presided by the
Chairman in a timely manner, to monitor objectives and strategies
of the management, financial conditions and operating results of
the Company and provisions of significant agreements.
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During the Reporting Period, the Board held four regular
Board meetings at approximately quarterly interval and other
Board meetings which were convened when deemed necessary.
Due notice and Board papers of regular Board meetings were
given to all Directors prior to the meeting in accordance with
the Bye-Laws and the Code. Details of individual attendance of
Directors at regular Board meetings in 2024 are set out below:

The attendance of the regular Board meetings in 2024:

Executive Directors
HITES

Chau Wai Hing

JE &

Mr. Wu Ming Gai
HAgE =S A&

Independent Non-executive Directors
BYFHITES

Ms. Chan Man Yi (resigned on 1 August 2024)
BHELt (R-_ZE-_mW&EN\A—BEHIT)

Ms. Leung Yin Ting

ZEBPL L

Dr. Wong Sze Lok

=RLE L

Ms. Lin Hsiu Mei (appointed on 1 August 2024)
HEBLZET (R=_T-_NFENA—BEZMT)

There was no change to the composition of the Board
and all Board committees after the end of the year ended 31
December 2024 and up to the date of this report.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision C.2.1 of part 2 of the Code provides that
the roles of Chairman and chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and chief
executive officer should be clearly established set out in writing.
The Chairman and chief executive officer of the Company are not
related to each other and there are clear divisions among their
responsibilities with a view to achieving a balance of power and
authority.

The role of the Chairman assumed by an executive Director,
Mr. Chau Wai Hing who takes responsibilities of the Chairman
as specified in the Code on overall strategic planning and
development of the Group and effective functioning of the Board.

The chief executive officer of the Company has been vacant
following the resignation of Ms. Chan Carman Wing Yan on 20
June 2022. Until the appointment of new chief executive officer,
the executive Directors continue to oversee the day-to-day
management of the business and operations of the Group.

The Chairman is the leader of the Board and he oversees
the Board so that it acts in the best interests of the Group. The
Chairman is responsible for deciding the agenda of each Board
meeting, taking into account, where appropriate, matters proposed
by other Directors for inclusion in the agenda. The Chairman has
overall responsibility for providing leadership, vision and direction
in the development of the business of the Company. As Mr. Chau
Wai Hing is the Chairman since 1 December 2022 and has served
as the executive Director of the Group, such practice deviates
from Code Provision C.2.1 of the Code as set forth in Appendix
C1 to the Listing Rules. The Board believes that vesting the
roles of both the Chairman and the chief executive officer in the
same person can facilitate the execution of the Group’s business
strategies and boost effectiveness of its operation. Therefore, the
Board considers that the deviation from code provision C.2.1 of
the Code is appropriate in such circumstance. In addition, under
the supervision of the Board which comprises two executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors, the
Board is appropriately structured with balance of power to provide
sufficient checks to protect the interests of the Company and
the shareholders (the “Shareholders”) of the Company. During
the Reporting Period, the Chairman had held a meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of the
other executive Directors and non-executive Directors.

The Board considers that there are adequate balance of
power and safeguards in place and will review and monitor this
situation periodically and will ensure that present structure would
not impair the balance of power of the Company.
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Responsibilities of Directors

In the course of discharging their duties, the Directors act in
good faith, with due diligence and care, and in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders of the Company. Their
responsibilities include:

- Attending regular board meetings focusing on business
strategy, operational issues and financial performance.

- Active participation on the boards of subsidiaries of the
Company.

- Approval of annual budgets for each operating
company covering strategy, financial and business
performance, key risks and opportunities.

- Monitoring the quality, timeliness, relevance and
reliability of internal and external reporting.

- Monitoring and managing potential conflicts of interest
of management, Board members and shareholders,
including misuse of corporate assets and abuse in
related party transaction.

- Ensuring processes are in place to maintain the
overall integrity of the Company, including financial
statements, relationships with other stakeholders, and
compliance with all laws and ethics.

To enable the Company’s Directors to meet their obligations,
an appropriate organisational structure is in place with clearly
defined responsibilities and limits of authority.

Board Committees

A number of board committees of the Company, including
audit committee of the Board (“Audit Committee”), investment
committee of the Board (“Investment Committee”), Nomination
Committee and remuneration committee of the Board
(“Remuneration Committee”), have been established by the
Board to strengthen its functions and to enhance its expertise.
These committees have been formed with specific written terms
of reference which deal clearly with the committees’ authority and
duties.
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Remuneration Committee

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee, as
at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprising
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Wong Sze
Lok (Chairman), Ms. Lin Hsiu Mei and Ms. Leung Yin Ting.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee have
been reviewed with reference to the Code which is available on
the Company’s website and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee’s responsibilities are to review
and consider Company’s policy for remuneration of Directors
and senior management, to determine remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management (under code
provision E.1.2(c)(i) was adopted) including benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, and to recommend to the Board
on remuneration of independent non-executive Directors.

Set out below is the summary of work of the Remuneration
Committee done in 2024:

- reviewed the terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee;

- reviewed the remuneration policy for 2024/2025;

- determined the remuneration of executive Directors
and senior management; and

- reviewed and made recommendation of the fee of
the non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors).

The remuneration of the members of the senior management
(including all executive Directors) by band for the year ended 31
December 2024 is set out below:

Remuneration bands (HK$)

FMER (B

0 to 1,000,000
0%1,000,000
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Further particulars regarding all Directors’ remuneration
and the five highest paid employees as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Appendix D2 to the Listing Rules are set out in note
14 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 121 to 122.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the
Reporting Period. Details of individual attendance of its members
are set out in the table below:

The change of members of the Remuneration Committee
during the Reporting Period and up to the date of

this report and their attendance of the Remuneration
Committee meeting in 2024:

Names

=S

Dr. Wong Sze Lok (Chairman)

HREEE L (E)

Ms. Chan Man Yi (resigned on 1 August 2024)
ReEL T (RZZE-WEFENA—BEE)

Ms. Leung Yin Ting

REfE L

Ms. Lin Hsiu Mei (appointed on 1 August 2024)
MEBLE (R_Z_WHFENA—BEEZE)

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of Directors and senior executives
is determined with reference to benchmarking of relevant
competitors in geographical areas where the Group carry on its
businesses, career progressions of the individual, economic trend
in geographical areas where the Group carry on its businesses,
recognition of experience, role contribution; performance of the
Group and the individual’'s performance. The Directors’ fees and
all other emoluments paid or payable to the Directors during the
Reporting Period are set out on an individual and named basis in
note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Audit Committee

As at the date of this report, the Company’s Audit Committee
is composed of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Dr. Wong Sze Lok (Chairman), Ms. Lin Hsiu Mei and
Ms. Leung Yin Ting. It reports directly to the Board and reviews
matters within the scope of audit, such as financial statements
and internal controls, to protect the interests of the Company’s
shareholders.

The Audit Committee meets regularly with the Company’s
external auditor to discuss audit process and accounting issues,
and reviews effectiveness of internal controls and risk evaluation.
Written terms of reference, which describes the authority and
duties of the Audit Committee are regularly reviewed and
updated by the Board. The terms of reference is available on the
Company’s website and the website of the Stock Exchange.

Set out below is the summary of work done in 2024:

- review of the consolidated and condensed financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 and
for the six months ended 30 June 2024 respectively;

- review of effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems;

- review of internal audit function;

- review of continuing connected transactions and
annual caps;

= review of implementation of policy for employees
of the Company to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters;

- review of independent auditor’s report and
management letter; and

- consideration and approval of 2024 audit fees and
audit work, review of engagement letter and make
recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of
auditor.

As at 31 December 2024, the arrangement for employees
of the Company to raise concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters was in place.
No reporting has been received by Audit Committee during the
Reporting Period.
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The Audit Committee held two meetings during the Reporting
Period. Details of individual attendance of its members are set out
in the table below:

The change of members of the Audit Committee during
the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report and
their attendance of Audit Committee meetings in 2024:

Names

i

Dr. Wong Sze Lok (Chairman)
mREE L (E)

Ms. Chan Man Yi (resigned on 1 August 2024)
RGBT (R -_MFEN\HA—HEHE)

Ms. Leung Yin Ting

REIBPLL

Ms. Lin Hsiu Mei (appointed on 1 August 2024)
MEBLE (R_Z_WHFENA—BREZE)

Nomination Committee

The Board has established a Nomination Committee on
1 April 2012 which currently comprises, three independent
non-executive Directors, Ms. Leung Yin Ting (Chairlady), Ms. Lin
Hsiu Mei and Dr. Wong Sze Lok.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have
been reviewed with reference to the Code which is available on
the Company’s website and website of the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee’s responsibilities are to review
and consider the structure, size and composition of the Board
regularly and make recommendation on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy.
Its duties include making recommendation to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships, the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee
is provided with sufficient resources to perform its duties.
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Set out below is the summary of work of the Nomination
Committee done in 2024:

- made recommendation to the Board on matters relating
to, inter alia, nomination of candidates to the Board
and re-election of retiring Directors;

- reviewed the board diversity policy and nomination
policy;

- reviewed the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee;

- conducted an annual review of the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors; and

reviewed the Board composition and structure.

According to the Bye-Laws, the Board has the power from
time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director
either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board.

The Nomination Committee also nominated and the Board
recommended Dr. Wong Sze Lok, Ms. Leung Yin Ting and Ms. Lin
Hsiu Mei to retire and, being eligible, to offer themselves for re-
election by shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming 2025
annual general meeting.

In considering the nomination of appointment and/or re-
appointment of Directors, the Nomination Committee assessed
the relevant candidates on criteria such as integrity, experience,
skill, professional qualifications, independent mind and ability
to commit time etc, and made recommendation to the Board for
approval.

NOMINATION POLICY

The secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
shall call a meeting of the Nomination Committee, and invite
nominations of candidates from the Director(s) for consideration
by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee
may also put forward candidates who are not nominated by the
Director(s). The factors which would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate for Director include, inter alia, reputation for integrity,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience that
are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy,
willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as the
Director, diversity of the Board, and such other perspectives
appropriate to the Company’s business. The Nomination
Committee shall make recommendations for the Board’s
consideration and approval.
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The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the
Reporting Period. Details of individual attendance of its members
are set out in the table below:

The change of members of the Nomination Committee
during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
report and their attendance of Nomination Committee
meeting in 2024:

Names

e

Ms. Leung Yin Ting (Chairlady)

R (F/E)

Ms. Chan Man Yi (resigned on 1 August 2024)
gL (RZZE-_WFENA—BEHE)

Dr. Wong Sze Lok

=ELE L

Ms. Lin Hsiu Mei (appointed on 1 August 2024)
mEFZE (KRB _WHFENA—BEEE)

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has formulated the board diversity policy
aiming at setting out the approach on diversity of the Board of the
Company.

The Board recognises the importance of having a diverse
Board in enhancing the board effectiveness and corporate
governance. A diverse Board will include and make good use
of differences in the skills, industry knowledge and experience,
education, background and other qualities, etc. of Directors and
does not discriminate on the ground of race, age, gender or
religious belief. These differences will be taken into account in
determining the optimum composition of the Board and when
possible should be balanced appropriately.

The Nomination Committee has responsibility for identifying
and nominating for approval by the Board, candidates for
appointment to the Board. It takes responsibility in assessing
the appropriate mix of experience, expertise, skills and diversity
required on the Board and assessing the extent to which the
required skills are represented on the Board and reviewing
effectiveness of the Board.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing
and reporting to the Board in relation to Board diversity.

A\ e
ERERH|E

RBEEHE - RERZBERRTMASH HEK

BmER L FEFBEHR TR

b=l

REEMMREEAREANREEARNA
BHREER-B-NEHEREEAREH
SELE

No. of meeting attended/
No. of meeting held
HESBERE
HITEBERE

1/2
2/2
2/2

N/A
A iE B

BEEEgREZRIEER
ARBEREFTEEEREL T E UK
WARRAREETGKEZ b 2HA °

ExgERIEReNES L RAESRS
@%&ﬁ%am%i%ﬁ,§$ﬁﬁayEME%§
ERETRMKE TENBRLER HE B REM

E%'IMM@% g ER B Sk 1ERIsk
FHEMFELHRE EFRETEFENREARKES
BELEZR MRAGE TEEELEZRZHELE
¥

REZEGEAVEAZENMAEZTENAL
ThEzEAATHESSH E- RBAEFHESZSH
FERB - BER REREZTAETEAENAS FEHE
ETEBMBRENER URBHEEGHRE-

REZBETAAREZTEXRES TLETR
ﬁ&@é%gﬂﬁ°

Annual Report 2024 £ 3§ 63



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A\ e
ERER/RE

With regards to gender diversity on the Board, the Group
recognises the particular importance of gender diversity. As at 31
December 2024, the Board comprised five Directors, including
two female Directors. The Group has taken and will continue to
take steps to promote and enhance gender diversity at all levels
of the Company. The Group will also ensure that there is gender
diversity when recruiting staff at mid to senior level so that it
will have a pipeline of female senior management and potential
successors to the Board going forward. It is the Group’s objective
to maintain an appropriate balance of gender diversity with
reference to the stakeholders’ expectation and international and
local recommended best practices.

As at 31 December 2024, the employees of the Group
(including senior management and Directors) comprise about
50.0% male and 50.0% female. The Company targets to avoid a
single gender senior workforce and will timely review the gender
diversity of the senior workforce in accordance with the business
development of the Group.

Board appointments will be based on merit and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates to join the Board will be, in
part, dependent on the pool of candidates with the necessary
knowledge, experience, skills, educational background and
other qualities. The final decision will be based on merit and
contribution the chosen candidate will bring to the Board.

The board diversity policy is subject to annual review by
Nomination Committee.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted dividend policy, the dividend
policy does not have any pre-determined dividend payout ratio.
In considering any dividend, the Board shall consider the actual
and expected financial performance of the Group, retained
earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and each
of the members of the Group, the level of the Group’s debts to
equity ratio, return on equity and the relevant financial covenants,
any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by
the Group’s lenders or other contractual restrictions, the Group’s
expected working capital requirements and future expansion
plans, general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Group’s business and other internal or external factors that may
have an impact on the business or financial performance and
position of the Group, and any other factors that the Board deems
appropriate. The Board has the absolute discretion to recommend
any dividends.
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Training and Continuous Professional Development

Director’s training is an ongoing process. During the
Reporting Period, Directors received from the Company updates
on changes and development to the legislative and regulatory
environments in which the Company operates. Directors
participated in continuous professional development such as
attending seminars to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. On appointment to the Board, each
newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive induction
package covering business operations, policy and procedures
of the Company as well as the general, statutory and regulatory
obligations of being a Director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently
aware of his/her responsibilities under the Listing Rules and
other relevant regulatory requirements. The Company had
received record of the trainings during the Reporting Period from
each Director relating to development and refreshment of their
knowledge and skills.
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Reading regulatory seminars/conferences relevant to

Directors

Ex

Executive Directors
HITES

Mr. Chau Wai Hing
JE & B 5% A

Mr. Wu Ming Gai
HASEE S &

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHTES

Ms. Chan Man Yi (resigned on 1 August 2024)
BReELLt (R_ZE-M&E/\ A —HEHIT)

Ms. Leung Yin Ting

Rt

Dr. Wong Sze Lok

=ERLE L

Ms. Lin Hsiu Mei (appointed on 1 August 2024)
MEEZET (R_ZE-_WENA—BEZRT)

updates the business or Directors’ duties
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as required under the Code. The major roles
and functions of the Board in respect of the corporate governance
are:

- to develop and review the Company’s policy and
practices on corporate governance; and

- to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors, the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and
Directors and the Company’s compliance with the
Code.

The Board had considered the following corporate
governance matters for 2024:

- review of the policy and practices adopted by the
Company and training for Directors, etc.

- review of usage of annual caps on the continuing
connected transactions of the Group

- review of compliance with the Code and disclosure of
Corporate Governance Report

= review of the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Company

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) is appointed a representative from an external
secretarial services provider as the Company Secretary. The
primary contact person of the Company with the Company
Secretary is Mr. Chau Wai Hing, the executive Director. The
role of the Company Secretary is to ensure effective information
flows and communication among Directors, as well as between
shareholders and management of the Company. The Company
Secretary is also responsible for advising the Board on
governance matters. All Directors have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary. During the Reporting Period,
the Company Secretary has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional trainings to update his skills and knowledge.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors for the Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules as the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, all the Directors confirmed
that in respect of the year ended 31 December 2024, they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code.

The Company has also established written guidelines
regarding securities transactions on no less exacting terms of the
Model Code for specific individual who may have access to inside
information in relation to the securities of the Company.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Audit Committee reviewed engagement letter and
report from the external auditor of the Company, McMillan Woods
(Hong Kong) CPA Limited, confirmed its independence. The
Audit Committee also approves their appointment, discusses
the scope of their audit, approved the audit fees, and the scope
and appropriate fees for any non-audit services requested to be
provided by external auditors.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited provided annual
audit services in respect of the Company’s consolidated financial
statements prepared under IFRS Accounting Standards for
the year ended 31 December 2024. The consolidated financial
statements are prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the
Listing Rules.

During the Reporting Period, remuneration paid/payable to
the Company’s auditor, McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
and other network firms, is as follows:

Services rendered: HK$
Audit services 368,000
Non-audit services

— Review of interim financial information 60,000
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS

The Board recognises its responsibility to ensure the
Company maintains a sound and effective risk management
and internal control systems. The Group’s risk management and
internal control systems are designed and established to ensure
that assets are safeguarded against improper use or disposal,
relevant rules and regulations are adhered to and complied
with, reliable financial and accounting records are maintained in
accordance with relevant accounting standards and regulatory
reporting requirements, and key risks that may impact on the
Group’s performance are appropriately identified and managed.
Review of the Group’s risk management and internal controls
covering major financial, operational and compliance controls,
as well as risk management functions. The risk management and
internal control systems can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss, as they
are designed to manage, rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives.

The Group has not established an internal audit, but has
engaged an external professional consultant to perform the work
of internal audit function and during the Reporting Period, the
external professional consultant had reviewed and assessed
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems (the
“Systems”) and reported to the Audit Committee (the “Review”).
The Review would identify the risks associated with the business
of the Group by considering both internal and external factors
and events which may include politics, economy, technology,
environmental, social and staff. Each of risks has been assessed
and prioritised based on their relevant impact and occurrence
opportunity. The relevant risk management strategy would be
applied to each type of risks according to the assessment results,
type of risk management strategy has been listed as follow:

- Risk retention and reduction: accept the impact of
risk or undertake actions by the Group to reduce the
impact of the risks;

- Risk avoidance: change business process or objective
so as to avoid the risk;

- Risk sharing and diversification: diversify the effect of
the risk or allocate to different location or product or
market; and

- Risk transfer: transfer ownership and liability to a third
party.
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Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the Systems
with the management annually to ensure that the management
has performed its duty to have effective Systems.

The external consultant, has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s Systems for the year ended 31
December 2024 and made recommendations to improve the
effectiveness of the Group’s Systems. After the Review, the
management provided an action plan so as to mitigate those
identified deficiencies in a timely manner. All internal control
findings would be followed up closely to ensure that the action
plan is implemented accordingly.

During the Reporting Period, the Board was satisfied that
the current internal control systems of the Company are effective
and adequate and that the qualifications and experience of the
staff, performing accounting and financial reporting functions
and the training programmes of the Company as well as the
experiences and resources for setting the budget of the Company
are adequate. The Company has complied with the requirements
under D.2.1 to D.2.7 and D.3.3 of the Code relating to risk
management and internal control.

In addition to the Review, undertaken by the external
professional consultants, the external auditor also assessed the
adequacy and effectiveness of certain key risk management
and internal controls as part of their audits. Where appropriate,
the external auditor’s recommendations are adopted and
enhancements to the risk management and internal controls will
be made.

The Board has received a confirmation from the
management of the Company on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system.

To facilitate the management and standardisation of
internal operation, the Company has regulations in place that
specify the responsibilities and scopes of anti-corruption works.
Anti-corruption policy has been adopted and all employees of the
Group have been required to strictly abide them. To encourage
employees to report the improprieties they found or suspected,
the Company has established appropriate whistleblowing
procedures pursuant to its whistleblowing policy so as to provide
a secure and fully confidential environment for employees to
report the improprieties that they genuinely concerned.

A\ e
ERER/RE

ERZESEFRNLIREEET R BRE
BECETRE BYEMEM-

RBE-_FT_MNF+-_A=+—HLFER"
SIMERERNASEZSERARARETARLRERE
AEEZEFERARMENRZ -RIR EEERH
TS URKRECHBNNTRE ZE - FTHE RS
EREREE T AT IR ARFRTEEEEE
EEE -

REBEHRE EFTSEMR: AR5 H AT A H
ErTzAEMAERR MEINERNRER St R
BERBEENETT ARARAMEIIRERANRA
ERBEE T ENERERERTEBRM - ARACET
FRRRERERAMEZENZTRED.2AREED.27
1A K 3 D.3.3IRIE T HIFRE °

BT RINEEE F M ETIRA N SN
AR A TEERREBRABEERET ZHE N -
EREEFAN D -EEEBRT FRMINEZ
BEME R WIRTT AR EIE MBI -

EXgCRIAAAEEERRE ERER
EEMNARBEERGE AR

REREERRBANEE AR ERE
HE AERBRIENBREREE -REBREKD
WERA W ERAEEL2RESRRET STEE
EREHRFRRKNBERNTETR AARREELSE
BERBLEAENSEHRAE REESEREEAELH
DT ETRREE-—EZE2REERENERER -

Annual Report 2024 £ 3§ 69



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A\ e
ERER/RE

DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company is committed to a consistent practice of
timely, accurate and sufficiently detailed disclosure of material
information about the Group. The Company has adopted a Policy
on Disclosure of Inside Information which sets out the obligations,
guidelines and procedures for handling and dissemination of
inside information. With these guidelines and procedures, the
Group has management controls in place to ensure that potential
inside information can be promptly identified, assessed and
escalated for the attention of the Board to decide about the need
for disclosure.

GOING CONCERN

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider
that the Company has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future and that, for
this reason, it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDER AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has adopted a shareholders’ communication
policy and is reviewed by the Audit Committee on an annual
basis. The objective of shareholders communication policy is to
provide our shareholders and potential investors with equal and
timely access to balanced and understandable information about
the Company. The Directors consider that the shareholders’
communication policy of the Company is satisfactory in terms of
its implementation and effectiveness.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to
ensure its shareholders are kept well informed of key business
imperatives. These include annual and special general meeting,
annual report, interim report, various notices, announcements and
circulars.

At the annual general meeting held on 27 June 2024 (“2024
AGM”), a separate resolution was proposed by the chairman
of the 2024 AGM in respect of each separate issue, including
re-election of retiring Directors. The Chairman of the Board and
the Chairman of Remuneration Committee and members of Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee, and representatives of
McMillan Woods attended the 2024 AGM to answer questions of
shareholders of the Company. Procedure for conducting a poll
were explained by the chairman of the 2024 AGM at the 2024
AGM.
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Attendance of individual Directors at general meeting(s) EAEER T _MERRAENEHERBR:
in 2024:
2024 AGM
—E-mE
BERBFAE

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Wu Ming Gai (Chairman) v
HRERES A (FE)

Mr. Chau Wai Hing v
JEl{& B 5 A

Independent Non-executive Directors

BIUFHITES

Ms. Chan Man Yi b 4
REBEL L

Ms. Leung Yin Ting b 4
REIBPLL

Dr. Wong Sze Lok v

BB

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company RAABWMKRERRBFAEHERN ST _RF X
will be held on 27 June 2025 which will be conducted by way of AZ+TEHRT ABARERRTAET-

poll.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The general meetings of the Company provide an
opportunity for communication between the shareholders of
the Company and the Board. An annual general meeting of the
Company shall be held in each year as may be determined by
the Board. Each general meeting, other than an annual general
meeting, shall be called a special general meeting (“SGM”). Set
out below are procedures by which shareholders may (a) convene
a SGM; (b) put forward enquires to the Board; and (c) put forward
proposals at general meetings. The procedures are subject to the
Bye-Laws and applicable legislation and regulation.

(a) Procedures for requisitioning a special general
meeting

Shareholder(s) of the Company (“Shareholder(s)”)
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying not less than 10% of the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company, on a vote per share
basis in the share capital of the Company, shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Directors or the company secretary of the Company,
to require a special general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of business specified in
such requisition and add agenda of the meeting so
convened; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition.

(b) Procedures for putting enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may, at any time, direct enquiries to the
Board. All enquiries shall be in writing and sent by post
to the principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong or by email to cs@cocoon.holdings for the
attention of the Board.

(c) Procedures for putting forward proposals at
general meetings

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of
the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right
to vote at general meetings of the Company or not less
than 100 shareholders may, at their expense, provide
a written request to the attention of the company
secretary of the Company signed and deposited in
accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

The procedures for shareholders of the Company to

propose a person for election as Director is available
on the Company’s website.
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Shareholders’ inquires

The Company continues to promote investor relations and
enhance communication with the existing shareholders and
potential investors. The Company welcomes suggestions from
investors, stakeholders and the public.

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings, share transfer, registration and payment of
dividends to the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
details of which are as follows:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Address: Shops 17M Floor
Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Wan Chai, Hong Kong
Email: hkinfo@computershare.com.hk
Tel: (852) 2862 8555 Fax: (852) 2865 0990

Shareholders and potential investors may, at any time, direct
enquiries to the Board. All enquiries shall be in writing and sent
by post to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong or by email to cs@cocoon.holdings for the attention of the
Board.

Constitutional documents

During the year ended 31 December 2024, there were no
changes in any of the Company’s constitutional documents.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN
PREPARING THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. The statement of
the Independent Auditor about their reporting responsibilities on
the consolidated financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on page 74 to 80.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
R

M McMillanWoods

Professionalism at the forefront
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and
continued in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Cocoon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 81 to 147,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2024, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards issued
by International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional
judgement, was of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
This matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on this
matter. The key audit matter we identified is valuation of Level 3
financial instruments.

Key Audit Matter
BREETEE

Valuation of Level 3 financial instruments

Refer to material accounting policy information, critical accounting
Jjudgement and key estimates and relevant disclosures in notes 4, 5,
7(a), 20 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

We identified the valuation of Level 3 financial instruments as a key
audit matter due to the significance of the amount to the consolidated
financial statements overall as a whole, the degree of complexity
involved, the significance of the judgements and estimates made
by the management and the subjectivity in determination of the fair
value of Level 3 financial instruments given the lack of availability of
market-based and observable data. The estimation process requires
management to make assumptions that include, amongst others,
volatility, percentage of premium in gold price and discount for lack
of control. The fair value of financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income and fair value through profit or
loss classified as Level 3 amounted to approximately HK$28,865,000
and HK$27,512,000 respectively as at 31 December 2024. The
valuations of the aforesaid Level 3 financial instruments were
performed by independent valuers.
HMKE=ZEReB I ANGERNSBERENSTE RELSZSHEY
FEMBHRRBEENEEN M RNEMEE B EEHHEN
EETEZN URERZTSABEBENBEATEEE=EREH
TAAAENIHU L BREEREREMARR HhaEKeE:
CEREBELMRZEHECHREER- R _NE+-_A=+—0H"
DEREZFBANEAANEREMZEKRZIIRZMEARBERER
PRz R EER R ED B R #)28,865,000/% 7T F127,512,000/% 7T
FRE=ZEREMITANGEEHRB LB EMET-

R

BARETEE
MREFTFTERREBRMANERHE RAH
AHGEEMBRRNEAZAEENER - RFHZ
EHMBRABRGEAMBHRRARLARRSETRE
MeRPMITEHRFREHREBNER K MAHEF2
WEREATERE=EREMIAME-

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEMNEANAEERERTSZE
EZEXE@MTAGHE

A BB B I AN -5 - 7(a) 20R21ANME
B EHERE AN - AL 2 HIBT IR 15 510 B 19
#a-

Our audit procedures in relation to this matter

included:

BMEBE@ELEFENSTEFEE:

- Obtaining an understanding of the valuation
techniques and the processes performed
by the independent valuers and the
management’s review process of the work of
the independent valuers with respect to the
valuation of Level 3 financial instruments;

- TERBUMAEMRTOHEERMMER  UEE
BEEHB Y AEMEE="EReMIAKETL
ERVE BT BAE

- Evaluating the competence, integrity and
independence of the independent valuers, and
their experience in conducting valuation of
similar financial instruments; and

- RIMEBUAEAEEE N MEMBILE AR
ALl emT BETHRENSR: &
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
R

KEY AUDIT MATTER (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BERENEE

76
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BRESSE(H)
How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNEANAEERRETSEE

Obtaining the respective independent valuation
reports, discussing with management about the
valuation of the Level 3 financial instruments,
with the assistance with the valuation experts,
and (i) reviewing the appropriateness of
the valuation techniques and assumptions
based on the industry knowledge; (ii) testing
the appropriateness of the key inputs by
independently checking to the relevant external
market data and/or historical transactions
which involved with measured, indicated or
inferred resources; (iii) inquiring and assessing
the rationale of the management’s judgements
on the key inputs, which are specific to the
respective investees; and (iv) evaluating
the accuracy of the calculations within the
valuation model and appropriateness of
the disclosure in the consolidated financial
statements.
EHEZRNHET BRS8N ELHERS
HEBEMmE=ZBReRIANME L({)E
BIT¥ANBEEHERMNRKAES M (i)
WIAB I REAEBINBIISEEN KB EEE
BT REEOE RN E E X5 RO R &
ANEREES: (AR THREREHERR
ANERHERIE R SLE ABHHSaNHER
ERa M (iv) A A ERE AT EERMTER
FEMBRARBNEE M-



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are
responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all of the information in the Company’s annual report
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards issued by the IASB
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act and our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within the
Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and review of the audit work performed for the
purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that

we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Sham Tsz Leung Desmond

Practising Certificate Number: P08234

24/F, Siu On Centre

188 Lockhart Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Hong Kong, 31 March 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HeBRaRkEtEZEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HILFE

2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
M iF FEx FHET
Gross proceeds from disposal of HEXSBHFNAMBRELE
trading securities 49,114 62,032
Revenue A 9 254 1,399
Other (losses)/gains, net Hith (F18) e F58 10 (72,218) 58,456
Other operating expenses HEf gz (3,980) (5,317)
Finance costs BEER 11 (866) (1,033)
(Loss)/profit before tax BRBiAT (BE) HF 12 (76,810) 53,505
Income tax FriS %t 13 - -
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to ZAATEEABEEE
owners of the Company (Br) %A (76,810) 53,505
Other comprehensive income/(expense), HhZ2EWE  (FX)
net of tax: (HBRBIR) ©
Item that will not be reclassified to HEHTEEN D EE B
profit or loss: HIEA -
— Fair value gain/(loss) on financial asset —BAREREMEEYR
at fair value through other FIER ([ AR EREAM
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) FEKEIE]) 2
TREENAAE
Wz, (F51E) 6,624 (2,662)
Total comprehensive (expense)lincome ZAATAEEAEEZE
for the year attributable to owners of (%) "hEz8HE
the Company (70,186) 50,843
(Restated)
(&E75)
(Loss)/earnings per share (HK$) sk (E8) BN GBT)
Basic AR 15 (1.08) 0.96
Diluted #e 15 (1.08) 0.96
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B ISR R

At 31 December 2024
RZE-_WNEF+=-A=+—H

2024 2023
—E_NE —E =
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
raE FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Plant and equipment Y- BB KRB 17 - =
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 18 - =
Current assets REBEE
Deposits, prepayments and other e B FIE R A E U FRIR
receivables 19 216 338
Financial assets at fair value through RARERERY K
profit or loss (“FVTPL”) (B RAEREBE=RIEE])
ZEMEE 20 115,713 172,306
Financial asset at FVTOCI BARBEREME ARSI
LEREE 21 28,865 22,241
Amounts due from securities brokers JFE UK 38 55 48 40 TR TE 22 2,471 338
Cash and bank balances We RIRITHRESR 23 191 7,799
147,456 203,022
Current liabilities REBAEE
Other payables E - 3R 24 3,453 2,441
Promissory notes EINES 25 13,939 4,335
17,392 6,776
Net current assets REBEEFE 130,064 196,246
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAES 130,064 196,246
Non-current liability FRBEE
Promissory notes ESNES 25 - 10,000
NET ASSETS EEFE 130,064 186,246
Capital and reserves BERR#E
Share capital & 25 26 850 60,434
Reserves Ei] 28 129,214 125,812
TOTAL EQUITY BRER 130,064 186,246
Net asset value per share BEREEFE 29 HK$1.533% T HK$0.3178 7T

FOIEMUTENGAVERERBESTER S _AF
A=+ —H#EREETEERATIATRAEESE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 81 to 147 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
31 March 2025 and are signed on its behalf by:

Chau Wai Hing Wu Ming Gai
BAERE ik AES
Director Director

£ EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HILFE

Financial
Share Share  Contributed asset at Accumulated
capital premium surplus  FVTOCI reserve losses Total
BRAREREM
2ENEIEZ
RA BAEE BEHRS SREENRE B i EHY
(Note 26)  (Note 28(b)(i) (Note 28(b)(ii)  (Note 28(b)iii)
(Hz226) (Fiz28()0) (Haz28(p)ii)) — (Hiz228b)(ii))
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEL FET FHEL FET T
At 1 January 2023 RZZE-=%-f-H 51,801 63,455 107,918 6,403 (111,276) 118,301
Profit for the year FE&EA - - - = 53,505 53,505
Other comprehensive expense, net of tax:  E 2 EFY (MBEHH) :
— Fair value loss on financial asset ~BARBREMRERESE
at FVTOCI JERBENALEER . - . (2,662) =
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FRZAYEAE - - - (2,662) 53,505 50,843
Issue of shares on placement (note 26())  ELEE 1R (H7#26()) 8,633 8,634 - - = 17,267
Cost of issuing new shares under REEERTHRNER
placement (note 26(i)) (Hiz#26() = (165) - - = (165)
Changes in equity for the year KEERHED 8,633 8,469 = (2,662) 53,505 67,945
At 31 December 2023 R-FE-=F+-A=+—H 60,434 71,924 107,918 3,741 (57,771) 186,246
At 1 January 2024 R-F-NF—-f—H 60,434 71,924 107,918 3,741 (57,771) 186,246
Loss for the year FEBR - - - - (76,810)  (76,810)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax: ~ E 2 A (BRHEH) -
~ Fair value gain on financial asset - BRAEREM 2 ERETER
at FVTOCI JERBEMANEKE - - - 6,624 - 6,624
Total comprehensive expense for the year FRZE Y £ - - - 6,624 (76,810)  (70,186)
Capital reorganisation (note 26(i)) RAEA (H1#26(i)) (70,086) (71,394) 97,335 - 44,145 -
Cost of capital reorganisation (note 26(ii) W AZHREE R (#726(i)) - (418) - - - (418)
Issue of shares on placements e ERE1TRD
(notes 26(ii) and (iv)) (Hi2:26(ii) & (iv)) 10,502 4,106 - - - 14,608
Cost of issuing new shares under REEERTHRNER
placements (notes 26{iii) and (iv)) (Bt :£26(iii) % (iv)) - (186) - - - (186)
Changes in equity for the year AEEERED (59,584) (67,892) 97,335 6,624 (32,665)  (56,182)
At 31 December 2024 R-_FE-_ME+-A=+—A 850 4,032 205,253 10,365 (90,436) 130,064
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

— L=
mEBRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HEZZ-_WF+-_A=+—HIFE

2024 2023
—E-_MNE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Cash flows from operating activities RETHELENEERE
(Loss)/profit before tax BRELAT (E518) R (76,810) 53,505
Adjustments for: o EE
Interest income from loan notes EREBEFE KA - (702)
Finance costs Eﬂ%%ﬁﬁ 866 1,033
Depreciation expense on FAEEENTEER
right-of-use assets - 202
Net unrealised fair value losses/(gains) BERARBERERIIEZ S/
on financial assets at FVTPL BEZAREBRAAE
BB (W) F8 78,891 (54,792)
Gain on disposal of loan notes HEBRER 2 W - (3,336)
Operating profit/(loss) before working BECEIA 2 LE
capital changes /MI I/ (&#8) 2,947 (4,090)
Decrease in deposits, prepayments Ee BAFIER
and other receivables H 8 W R IE R 122 453
Increase in financial assets at FVTPL RARERERVIEZ
LA EE M (22,298) (9,764)
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due JE W 78 5 48 42 RRIE
from securities brokers (#m) R (2,133) 1,886
Increase in other payables and accruals E AT S R FEET & LN 1,012 1,234
Net cash used in operating activities RETHAFRE (20,350) (10,281)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HILFE

2024 2023
—ENF —EZ=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Cash flows from financing activities METBz2RERE
Proceeds from issue of shares on placements  fit & 2 17 () &) BT 18 308 14,608 17,267
Cost of issuing new shares under placements  RIEE ST RN E A (186) (165)
Cost of capital reorganisation BEAREHKAE (418) =
Payments of lease liabilities BEHEAR - (208)
Repayment of promissory notes BEAHER (559) =
Interests paid for promissory notes RELEEINAFE (669) (856)
Interests paid for lease liabilities HEEEEZMANFE - (4)
Other interests paid HEiEAFE (34) -
Net cash from financing activities MEEEMEBREESFEHR 12,742 16,034
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReRBLEHECAD)
cash equivalents R (7,608) 5,753
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning FYRekREEE
of the year 7,799 2,046
Cash and cash equivalents FRESRECEH
at the end of the year 191 7,799
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents ReRBREEHEIW
Cash and bank balances e RIRTT R 191 7,799
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1.

86

GENERAL INFORMATION

Cocoon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company and
continued in Bermuda with limited liability and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The address of its registered office
is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company
is Room 14A, Fortune House, 61 Connaught Road Central,
Central, Hong Kong. The principal activities of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
are investments in securities listed on recognised stock
exchanges and unlisted investments with a potential for
earnings growth and capital appreciation.

The investment objective of the Group is to achieve an
enhanced earnings stream and capital appreciation from its
investments.

The Group has adopted the following investment policies:

(i) the Group may, at its sole discretion, invest in any
securities, listed or unlisted, including warrants,
money market instruments, bank deposits, currency
investments, commodities, options, convertible
securities, futures contracts, loan notes and precious
metals or any other forms of investments in securities
which would enable the Group to achieve good income
or capital appreciation.

(ii) the Group may, for hedging purposes only, buy, write
or sell warrants, covered warrants, options or traded
options on its underlying investments. The Group may
also buy or sell futures contracts on stock indices or
shares (if any) as a means to hedge against adverse
price movements of its investments.

(iii) in order to hedge against interest rate risks, the Group
may enter into forward interest rate agreements,
interest rates and the United States (the “U.S.”)
treasury bond futures contracts and interest rate
swaps. The Group may also, for hedging purpose
only, purchase and write (sell) put or call options or
options on futures on interest rates. The Group will
only engage in transactions in options and futures
which are traded on a recognised securities or futures
exchange.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION (Continued)

(iv) cash pending investment, reinvestment or distribution
will be placed in bank deposits in any currency,
obligations of the U.S. or Hong Kong governments,
their respective agencies or instrumentalities, or
securities and other instruments denominated in
any currency issued by various governments or
international development agencies.

The Group may not:

(i)  either on its own or in conjunction with any connected
person, take legal, or effective, management control
of any company or other entity in which it invests or
controls more than 30% (or such other percentage as
may from time to time be specified in the Takeovers
Code as being the level for triggering a mandatory
general offer) of the voting rights in such company or
other entity; and

(ii) invest in any company or other entity if as a result,
more than 20% of the Company’s net asset value as at
the date of such investment would be invested in any
one such company or other entity.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards,
which in collective term includes all IFRS Accounting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”). These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The material accounting policy information of the
Group are set out in note 4.

The IASB has issued certain new and amendments to IFRS
Accounting Standards that are first effective or available
for early adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for current and prior accounting periods reflected in
these consolidated financial statements.

e B ISR R M
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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3.

88

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
IFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Application of amendments to IFRS Accounting
Standards

The Group has applied the following amendments to IFRS
Accounting Standards issued by the IASB for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2024, for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current

Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants

Amendments to IAS 7 and Supplier Finance Arrangements

IFRS 7

The application of the amendments to IFRS Accounting
Standards in the current year had no material impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial positions and consolidated
performance for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
IFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRS Accounting
Standards issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the new and amendments
to IFRS Accounting Standards that have been issued but are
not yet effective for the financial year beginning 1 January
2024.

Effective for the
accounting periods
beginning on or after

Amendments to IAS 21 and IFRS 1
Lack of Exchangeability

1 January 2025

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7
Classification and Measurement of
Financial Instruments

1 January 2026

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7
Contracts Referencing Nature-dependent
Electricity

1 January 2026

Amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards
Annual Improvement fo IFRS
Accounting Standards - Volume 11

1 January 2026

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or To be determined
Contribution of Assets between an by the IASB
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

1 January 2027

Except for the new IFRS Accounting Standard mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other amendments to IFRS Accounting
Standards will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.

3.

e B ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_WE+-_A=+—HIFE

BR AR RT I 248 5T B Bl PR B 7% R 5 2 Rl
IR (&)

© 78 i {8 s R 4 2% B9 F7 5] I A2 48 5] RO B BR
MBmEEAGITER
AEBYREG-_T-NE— B — AROME
6 [ 42 A1 FE B © 2B 4518 14 oK A2 R0 9 AT RAB 1
AT B B T o 5 A B g AR o

RT5IEER
ZRERE
B HBAEN
B & 5 R RISE215% M Bl “Z_1§¥—H—-HR
FBmELENEIR (BFTA)
#RE A
BFR B 75 3R 5 42 R 05 “Z-RF-HA—H
IR BA T 3R S A R 755
(BRIR) 2B TEADE
Rit&E
BRI B 75 4 5 22 RI B 9% I —E-RF-HA—H
B 75 3R SR E TR
(BRTAR) ZR GRS
BERLEZHE
BRI 75 RS ER & 5HE —E_A¥—H-H

(BRIR) Bl R 5 & R
Eit BRI FRAE-FE
ERABHRESENE8RTHF —FT_tF-A—R
xR 2IRFE

BRI A5 R SRR 105 1 R g EA
B et ERIF285 (BFTA) ZEEERE

REZHEAB LA L ST FE
Z B EEL & T E

B T AT 2 ¥ AT B BR B 7% 3R 5 2 R & A 2R
S RAREEFEHEMAMA H Mt BEERE MK R
SEANSFEUEITART R RRETE Y4
B BBRRELEATE -

Annual Report 2024 £ %§ 89



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_ZT-_WF+-_A=+—BILFE

3.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
IFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRS Accounting
Standards issued but not yet effective (Continued)

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements, which sets out requirements on presentation
and disclosures in financial statements, will replace IAS
1 Presentation of Financial Statements. This new IFRS
Accounting Standard, while carrying forward many of
the requirements in IAS 1, introduces new requirements
to present specified categories and defined subtotals in
the statement of profit or loss; provide disclosures on
management-defined performance measures in the notes
to the financial statements and improve aggregation and
disaggregation of information to be disclosed in the financial
statements. In addition, some IAS 1 paragraphs have been
moved to IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures. Minor amendments to |IAS 7 Statement of Cash
Flows and |IAS 33 Earnings per Share are also made.

IFRS 18, and amendments to other standards, will be
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2027, with early application permitted. The application of
the new standard is expected to affect the presentation
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and disclosures in the future
consolidated financial statements. The Group is in the
process of assessing the detailed impact of IFRS 18 on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned
otherwise in the accounting policies below (e.g. certain
financial assets that are measured at fair value).

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
in conformity with IFRS Accounting Standards requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 5.

The material accounting policy information applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
set out below:

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are
entities over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. The Group has power over an
entity when the Group has existing rights that give it
the current ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e.
activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date the control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(a) Consolidation (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses, unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is

classified as held for sale).

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets

including goodwill.

(b) Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”), which is the Company’s functional and

presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances in each entity’s

financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting
period. Gains or losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
values in foreign currencies are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates when the fair

values are determined.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(c)

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is,
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the right to
direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from that
use.

The Group as a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less. After initial recognition, the
lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and
the lease term. The Group present right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities on a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

For short-terms leases, the Group recognises the
lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-
line basis over the terms of the lease.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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4.

94

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(d)

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED # B XS #ZRAER L 7

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position when
the Group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(e)

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace. All recognised
financial assets are measured subsequently in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Debt investments

Debt investments held by the Group are classified
into amortised cost,
collection of contractual cash flows which represent
solely payments of principal and interest.
income from the investment is calculated using the
effective interest method.

if the investment is held for the

Interest

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVTPL unless the equity investment is not held for
trading purposes and on initial recognition of the
investment the Group makes an election to designate
the investment at FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Such elections are
made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may
only be made if the investment meets the definition
of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where such
an election is made, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the financial asset
at FVTOCI reserve (non-recycling) until the investment
is disposed of. Dividends from an investment in equity
securities, irrespective of whether classified as at
FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as
revenue.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(e)

()

Financial assets (Continued)
Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost.
instruments other than purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the
next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer credit-

For financial

impaired.

Interest and dividend income which are derived from
the Group’s ordinary course of business are presented
as revenue.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand and other financial institutions, and short-term,
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for the expected
credit losses (the “ECL”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(9)

(h)

(i)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under IFRSs.
The accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including other payables and
promissory notes are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

)

(k)

U

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED # B XS #ZRAER L 7

Revenue recognition

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment are established.

Employee benefits
(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

(b) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit
or loss represents contributions payable by the
Group to the funds.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised
in profit or loss because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

U

(m)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax
losses or unused tax credits can be utilised.

Impairment of financial assets
Impairment under the ECL model

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets which are subject to impairment under
IFRS 9 (including deposits and other receivables,
amounts due from securities brokers and cash and
bank balances). The amount of the ECL is updated
at the end of each reporting period to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective
financial instrument.

For all financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
However, if the credit risk on the financial instrument
has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group measures the loss allowance for that
financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected
to result from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

100 COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED "B XS #ZRAER A T

(m) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the end of
the reporting period with the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking
information considered includes the future prospects
of the industries in which the Group’s debtors operate,
obtained from financial analysts and governmental
bodies, as well as consideration of various external
sources of actual and forecast economic information
that relate to the Group’s core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular financial
instrument;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

- significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same debtor; and

- an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4, EBEAREHTHERER (H)
INFORMATION (Continued)

(m) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(m) SREENRE (&)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than
30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrate
otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
end of the reporting period.

A financial instrument is determined to have low
credit risk if (i) the financial instrument has a low risk
of default (i.e. no default history); (ii) the borrower
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term; and (iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations. The Group considers a financial asset to
have low credit risk when the asset has external credit
rating of “investment grade” in accordance with the
globally understood definition or if an external rating
is not available, the asset has an external rating of
“performing”. Performing means that the counterparty
has a strong financial position and there is no past due
amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(m) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria

are generally not recoverable:

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by

the counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals

held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group also
considers that default has occurred when the
instrument is more than 90 days past due unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is

more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

counterparty;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past

due event;

= the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
counterparty a concession(s) that the lender(s)

would not otherwise consider;

- it is becoming probable that the counterparty
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation; or

- The disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4, EBEAREHTHERER (H)
INFORMATION (Continued)

(m) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(m) SREENRE (&)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised directly in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information as
described above. As for the exposure at default, for
financial assets, this is represented by the assets’
gross carrying amount at the end of the reporting
period.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the
current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime
ECL are no longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at
the current reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

515 5
AEERBERKRARZHEFRIEEY
BRESEERRETRE (ZXZHFE
ETREREARERF) BHHESRE
o MiH 2 & B A E DA R B A K B K E
REFRERERZRZERRBBINIT-E
Y m IR E N B ER -

TRE 5 BB 18 1Y 5 B 4 HE7
BEHEEBRAENROBE EHNEX
KRE (BWENBRNEER) REHE
BE B BOB R BOBRER MG
THERE L TiE 1 &R B 2 L R
EH-RRORARME UERMEER R
EHREEAERY -

TREENHEHREEBREAFATEER
BRHNEBENFAAEANRERERAKE
BHKRBRMWAERERECHNEZE X
BRBEBERNXFHE -

AR B R AT — R E B RERR 2R
HEEBENSRAES R T A BHER
B ERARERHEEETEREEH
BEHEEBENKRE MAKERN AR
SEHZRERAR T _EARBEEEEN
CHEERREA HERABLIENE
ERRSN -

Annual Report 2024 &% 103



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HEZZ-_WF+-_A=+—HIFE

4.

104 COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSERAERA A

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(m) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY ESTIMATES

In applying the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors of the Company have made the following
judgement that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements
(apart from those involving estimations, which are dealt with
below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY ESTIMATES (Continued)

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Equity investment in private entity designated at
financial asset at FVTOC/

As mentioned in note 21, the Group had subscribed 20%
equity interest in an Anguilla incorporated private entity,
Perfect Path Limited (“Perfect Path”). Despite the Group
holds 20% of the voting power in Perfect Path, the unlisted
equity investment is designated at financial asset at
FVTOCI. The Group does not have significant influence
over Perfect Path as (i) the Group has no right to be
represented in the board of directors of Perfect Path; and (ii)
the remaining equity interest, being 80% equity interest of
Perfect Path is owned by another single shareholder other
than the Group.

Key source of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
source of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Valuation of Level 3 financial instruments

Certain equity investments of the Group classified as financial
assets at FVTOCI and FVTPL have been valued under
market approach using the unobservable inputs such as
volatility, percentage of premium in gold price and discount
for lack of control. These valuations require the directors of
the Company to make such estimation, and hence they are
subject to uncertainties. Whilst the Group considers these
valuations are the best estimates, the uncertainties in the
global economy may affect the business of the investee.
Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could result
in material adjustments to the fair value of these financial
assets. The fair value of these financial assets at FVTOCI
and FVTPL at 31 December 2024 were approximately
HK$28,865,000 and HK$27,512,000 (2023: HK$22,241,000
and HK$20,105,000) respectively. Further details are set out
in notes 7, 20 and 21.
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Path #)20% = A% EF L MiE=KRERER
BEAREREMAZARSIIEZEREE X
EE % Perfect PathWHEEBAZE 7 BA(I) A
EEEET RN K H T Perfect PathMEZEE @ :
Ko (i) #2 T BE#E (Perfect Path H980% & ## ) i A
EEUIN S —E—REER -

iy 5t A ¥ E 1 7Y B 88 2ROR

VAR 7 & R o B R B R 2R O B 8 R AR A I
et THEEENEMERKR YAEAAHET
—HRFEEEMBERANSHEENERAR
M E A

EZEANEHTARGE
AREBABARAREREMZEWEINER
BARERIESIEZSHMEENE TRER
BEDRBERE T ISR E AR (EE-
HESERBEMEIE SRR IEFIENE)D
MEEETHE- HEHEEZRKARTEFE
T RN EREAEEENEE - HFERAN
SERAZEHERKEMT BEE2XRLED
EEMAETYERRERRMERK -HE LR
ZEENBRRZEYSERNEHZEEREER
AENERAZ-R-_E-_ME+=-A=+—
A ZAREREMZEKRSNERIZALE
RIESIERZZECREENAABDRNA
28,865,0007% 7T 27,512,000 T (T = =
F: 522,241,000 7T %20,105,0008 70) - B
B — 2 aEE SR 7 2021 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_ZT-_WF+-_A=+—BILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, price risk, credit risk, interest rate
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance. The board of directors of the
Company reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency
risk as certain of the Group’s cash and bank balances
and equity securities which are denominated in United
States dollars (“US$”).

The Group considers the risk exposure to foreign
currency fluctuation is limited and insignificant as long
as HK$ remains pegged to the US$. This analysis is
performed on the same basis for the prior years.

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will
monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

(b) Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair values of the equity
securities vary as a result of the changes in the market
prices of the individual equity securities. The Group
is exposed to price risk arising from individual equity
securities included in financial assets at FVTPL (note
20) and financial asset at FVTOCI (note 21) as at 31
December 2024 and 2023.

The Group’s listed equity securities are listed in Hong
Kong and the U.S. and are valued with reference to
the quoted market price at the end of the reporting
period. For those equity securities with (i) little volatility
during the year which the quoted market price might
not be representative; or (ii) unlisted equity securities/
investments, independent professional qualified valuer
will be engaged by the directors of the Company to
determine their respective fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Price risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to price risk at the end of the
reporting period. For sensitivity analysis purpose, the
sensitivity rate is increased to 20% for the year ended
31 December 2024 from 5% for the year ended 31
December 2023 as a result of the volatile financial
market.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had
been 20% (2023: 5%) higher/lower, the decrease/
increase (2023: increase/decrease) in loss before tax
(2023: profit before tax) and the other comprehensive
income (2023: other comprehensive expense) has
been presented as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2024

e B ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WNF+-_A=t+—HIFE

6. MBERER (&)

(b)

ExmEk (F)

AN SURNE D AT TR B S IR A E Y A9
ERERMEE REEEITHE A
REBTERY FRUELETHABE_F
TEF+TZ A=+ HIEFERS% M
EHE_ZT_WNE+_A=1+—RHLFE
#920% °

WEERATANER LA THK20% (=
T_=ZF:5%) " Bﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁéﬂé(:g:z
FBRBRAEN) REMEEKE
=R HEEAXMRD N (=
So=F R BRI

—7

BE_F-_WNFF_H="+—HIFE

Carrying Decrease/
amount increase
of equity in loss
investments before tax
ERREZ I‘%ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬂ%
REE B, 18 m
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FHET
Equity securities classified as financial DERBANERERIIRZ
assets at FVTPL and listed in: FELMEREES RN T £
— Hong Kong — &5 27,070 5,414
— The U.S. —%H 69,067 13,813
Unlisted equity investments classified as 2 AEAABRIBEIIEZ
financial assets at FVTPL FLTHRERE 19,576 3,915
115,713 23,142
Increase/
Carrying decrease
amount in other
of equity comprehensive
investments income
BERErz Htt2EWE
IREE 2, m D
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT THERT
Unlisted equity investment designated BERBRAAEREMEEKE
at financial asset at FVTOCI HIER 2 & @ ﬁ%ZiFim$’ém Bl 28,865 5,773
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HEZZ-_WF+-_A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HMBEKRER (&)
(b) Price risk (Continued) (b) EHREE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T —F+-_HA=+—HIFE
Carrying Increase/
amount decrease in
of equity profit before
investments tax

BEREZ B 5% A /&5 18
FREE i mA

HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT
Equity securities classified as financial DEREANERERIIERZ
assets at FVTPL and listed in: EREERRTIME FTH2
REmES
- Hong Kong —B% 12,197 610
— The U.S. — %6 140,004 7,000
Unlisted equity investments classified as 2B AR AAREBRIBREYIERZ
financial assets at FVTPL CRMEECHELTERIKE 20,105 1,005
172,306 8,615
Decrease/
Carrying increase
amount in other

of equity comprehensive
investments expense
BanikEr Hh2ERAX
REE Ry il

HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEIT FHEIT

Unlisted equity investment designated at ~ 87E A& A A BN b 2 Kz
financial asset at FVTOCI PRz eREE 2 EMERIEE 22,241 1,112
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c)

Credit risk

The carrying amount of deposits and other receivables,
amounts due from securities brokers and cash and
bank balances included in the consolidated statement
of financial position represents the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to the Group’s
financial assets.

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group had
delegated its finance team to develop and assign the
Group’s credit risk grading to categories exposures
according to their degree of risk of default. Reference
to the public available financial information and
the historical repayment records is being made to
determine whether there was significant increase
in credit risk individually. The Group’s exposure
and the credit rating of its counterparties were
continuously monitored and the aggregate value of
transactions concluded was spread amongst approved
counterparties. The ECL rates were determined based
on default rate from external international credit rating
agency and were adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information.

e B ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HILFE

6. MBERER (&)

(c)

EERE

B I H U IR B W 5 AR 4D FROR
NRBE RBTERESAVBRRERA
FEMmEEeERAEEEHEREEDN
RREERR-

ARV EERR AKREEZREMBE
FiREEORREEHEL S AEEEER
R FRERRERRERN 20U QR
1S 0 B 515 BN R SE3& SR RC 8% R FE TE 2
BEMNFEBRZEMNERARR KAEE
MEBREERSHFHERTRZIFHE
EE ISR GNBERNERERZIHF
ho#E-FHEEBBEEDENINREER
ERAFEEENEOXRETE WETHE
VAR B AT AIRTRE MEE B e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HEZZ-_WF+-_A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MEEMERE (&)
(c) Credit risk (Continued) (c) FERK (&)
The Group’s current credit risk grading framework REBEREEERRTIRERBIEUTE
comprises the following categories: Al
Category Definition Basis of recognising ECL
5l e S EHEEFEENEREE
Performing The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not 12-month ECL
have any past-due amounts
R4f REEFENRRIK - B I EEA@ HARE TZEAEREEER
Doubtful There has been a significant increase in credit risk since Lifetime ECL not credit impaired
initial recognition
7 &t EE R B ¥R #E 52 DA 2R K 18 35 0 >HEBREEEE BEERE
In default There is evidence indicating the asset is credit impaired Lifetime ECL credit impaired
b0 EEBRBEEFEERE HEHEEEE FERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe Amount is written off
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect
of recovery
3 ERBRABBAGRENBRE AEEBRER F&ZX  MIERE

For deposits and other receivables, the directors

L EE

RERENEMEBRREAMNS  ARRES

of the Company make individual assessments on
their recoverability. There was no impairment on
the deposits and other receivables under the ECL
recognised for the years ended 31 December 2024
and 2023 as the directors of the Company considered
that the amount of the ECL was insignificant.

The credit risk on amounts due from securities
brokers is limited because the counterparties are well-
established securities broker firms in Hong Kong which
are subject to compliance requirement under Securities
and Futures (Client Money) Rules.

The credit risk on bank balances is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d)

(e)

e B ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HILFE

6. MBERER (&)

Interest rate risk (d) FI=ZRE
The Group’s cash flow exposure to interest-rate risk REBR €% E MR A =R RIRERT
arises from its bank deposits. These bank deposits TR ZERITFIIRBIRIEE 7™ i5 K
bear interests at floating rates varied with the then MR FE N EAERN S -
prevailing market condition.
The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate 7N 55 [ 7 E B B E U EE 5 AS A0 TR IR
risk in relation to amounts due from securities brokers REENRAARENERR -AEEB R
and promissory notes. The Group currently does BEREEFRBR - AMELEHERME
not have an interest rate hedging policy. However, Eig - WREMEHREAFNERRREZE
management monitors interest rate exposure and will Hi L EHE o
consider other necessary actions when significant
interest rate exposure is anticipated.
Except as stated above, the Group does not have bR EXXRtEIN R EHR AEEL
other significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities EEMEMERGEEERARE s
at the end of the reporting period, its income and RigEReRERNR EB LIRS X E
operating cash flows are substantially independent of BoHRMBINENSBAREHEIS
changes in market interest rates. Sensitivity analysis HAEENGEVBERREREATZE
on cash flow interest rate risk has not been presented I - 3 4 5L 3R @ = F R R R 51 ) SRR
as the reasonably possible changes in market interest M5 o
rate will not have significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
Liquidity risk (e) FENMERER
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current N6 E A BR R T HA BE 2 B HA K 8 HR O &
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that BeF K UBREASEHRSEH
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its UREHEERARRARDEST
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted AEEMFTESHBERBESHORITER
cash flows of the Group’s non-derivative financial REeERBMIEMR IO T
liabilities is as follows:
On demand Total
and less than Between undiscounted Carrying
1 year 1 and 2 years cash flows amount
BERK RITH
PR—F —Z-F HEeRELHE IREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHIT
At 31 December 2024 R-B-_@mE+=-A=+-H
Other payables HAipEd 3,453 - 3,453 3,453
Promissory notes ZENE 14,346 - 14,346 13,939
17,799 - 17,799 17,392
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=%+=-A=+-H
Other payables H B 5 5K 2,441 - 2,441 2,441
Promissory notes AT E 4,586 10,800 15,386 14,335
7,027 10,800 17,827 16,776
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HEZZ-_WF+-_A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HMERKRERE (&)
(f) Categories of financial instruments at 31 ) R+=A=+—BHWEMIAEH
December
2024 2023
—E-NmE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET
Financial assets: cREE:
Financial assets at amortised cost RESRANATENEREE 2,833 8,191
Financial assets at FVTPL BERARERERIECERMEE 115,713 172,306
Financial asset at FVTOCI BEARBEREMEERZEIIRZ
TREEE 28,865 22,241
Financial liabilities: cRasE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost IREHBRK AT EN TR AE 17,392 16,776
(g) Fair values (9) AR{E
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets REMBRARNIIRMASEESRE E
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated FeAaEnREBERESEN AR
statement of financial position approximate their (EC

respective fair values.

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. AAREFE

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an AAEREMS2EECHEABENERFR

asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction SH HE-—EHEEMEWIIXEEL A

between market participants at the measurement date. The % FEYNNER - U TARBENEREFER

following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair AABEER BAAETZATERNGERIN
value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs WABEE DA =EEKX:

to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs:  quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets F—EAABE: AEEALFERAEHRG
for identical assets or liabilities that the BAE R & Ek B EEE R
Group can access at the measurement M5 ERKEHERNRE -
date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included F_EBRGAB: KE-EBIAFSHEINE
within Level 1 that are observable for HEEXAEEENHEE
the asset or liability, either directly or AR E AE-
indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or E-EBRGAEBE: HBAEEXBENTATR
liability. PN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date of the
event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

(a) Disclosures of level fair value hierarchy at 31
December

e B ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HILFE

DofEE (H)
AEENBRATEHREERLERBEY

BRBELEZCWAREREALEL =@EER
e ] — & o

(@) RT+=-ZB=+—HBHNAAREBIAEE
2024
—EomE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

E-BR EZEBRXR HZER BE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FERT TR TR TR

Recurring fair value measurements:

Financial assets at FVTPL
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong

REMARENE:
BAAEREBHIIKZEMEE
BENEEITRAES

and the U.S. 88,201 - 7,936 96,137
Unlisted equity investments FELETMRERRE - - 19,576 19,576
88,201 - 27,512 115,713
Financial asset at FVTOCI BEAABEREMZE KRR
ZERMEE
Unlisted equity investments FLTEEES - - 28,865 28,865
88,201 - 56,377 144,578
2023
—EZ=F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—EBRk F-BR F£=BR ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FHET FHET FHEL
Recurring fair value measurements: KEMDIABETE:
Financial assets at FVTPL BEARERERIRZERMEE
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong BEEREBR ETERES
and the U.S. 152,201 - = 1525204
Unlisted equity investments FELMEREE - - 20,105 20,105
152,201 - 20,105 172,306
Financial asset at FVTOCI BEAABEREM2E KR
ZEMEE
Unlisted equity investments FLETMERES = - 22,241 22,241
152,201 - 42,346 194,547

The fair value of financial assets at FVTPL classified
as level 1 is based on quoted bid price in an active
market.

DRRE-BRANRALERERINEKZ
EREENAABENRERT S LNRE

s
=t &
al = °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_ZT-_WF+-_A=+—BILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7.

(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value
based on Level 3
During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023,
there were no transfer of financial assets from Level 3
to other levels of hierarchy.

The following table presents the movements in Level
3 instruments of the Group during the year ended

REFTE (&)
BE-ZERXRAAEFENEENHIR

RBE_ZT_NFR-_FT_=ZF+_H
=t HLEFE - YEE-"FERANZBE
EEMEAMER-

TRIBREBEE T -_OMF+_A=+—
BIEFERN AEEEF=—BAXTAENES-

31 December 2024.

Equity
securities/
investments
held for trading
in the U.S. and
classified as
financial assets

2024

—EoQF

Equity
investment
designated at
financial asset

at FVTPL at FVTOCI Total
REBRERS
RAEARAR ETARAAE
BERERIEz REtZEKRS
¢REEZ JERZEMEE
BEEHRE MEZRE @
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FER FHT FBT
At 1 January mn—HA—H 20,105 22,241 42,346
Addition wNE 9,700 - 9,700
Disposal = (218) - (218)
(Losses)/gains recognised BHR(EE) T
— in profit or loss (included other - RiEm (BEEM
(losses)/gains, net) (B1E) s H5) (2,075) - (2,075)
— in other comprehensive income -REMEERE - 6,624 6,624
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 27,512 28,865 56,377
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7.

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value

based on Level 3 (Continued)

BHE

Jb{g—l_i (nﬁ)
(b) RE=ZBALMAEBEFENEENHK

(&)

—E_NFE+-_A=+—HILEE

2023
—ZE-=
Equity
securities/
investments
held for trading Equity
in the U.S. and investment
classified as designated at
financial assets financial asset
at FVTPL at FVTOCI Total
REBRFERS
RDBEREBERR HBERRAAE
BERERTIEz REMZERS
PREEZ JIRZEREBE
HaER/IRE =R E B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
TET FET FET
At 1 January R—R—H 24,445 24,903 49,348
Losses recognised BEHRRAER
— in profit or loss (included in other -RER (BEEM
(losses)/gains, net) (B1E) /e F5E) (4,340) - (4,340)
— in other comprehensive expense -REMEZERT - (2,662) (2,662)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—~H 20,105 22,241 42,346
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_ZT-_WF+-_A=+—BILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Disclosure of valuation process used by
the Group and valuation techniques and
inputs used in fair value measurements at
31 December:

The directors of the Company are responsible for
the fair value measurements of assets and liabilities
required for financial reporting purposes, including
Level 3 fair value measurements.

For Level 3 fair value measurements, the Group
engaged independent valuation experts with
recognised professional qualifications and recent
experience to perform the valuations.

7. AREFE(E)
(c) HEAKEEANMGERRARR
tTZA=t-BRAAEFEFRERAN
CREERRIL PN

ARRELEBEVBRENFTNEENR

BARENE BREF=-ERAAEFE-

ERE=-"ERANEAE FEECER
EERABXERERORRNBE I (HE
BRETHE

Level 3 fair value measurements Fair value
EZBRAAERE ARE
2024 2023
ZECmE —To=F
Effect on fair value
Unobservable for increase of
Description Valuation technique inputs Range unobservable inputs HK$’000 HK$'000
TABRBARE
it RER TABREBHA BE EnHARENRE TR TAT
Assets
Financial asset at FVTOCI
RAREREMEZERRIE
Unlisted equity investments Market Approach — Discount for lack 18.6%  Decrease 28,865 22,241
Comparable transaction  of control (2023: 20%)  HEL
method B IR B (ZF==%:20%)
FEMERES mH% - TR 5% Percentage of 6.7% Increase
premium in (2023: 6.5%) &N
gold price (ZE==F:6.5%)
EELBIREE
ANt
Financial assets at FVTPL
BRAAERERIIRZEREE
Listed equity securities using Market Approach — Latest Volatility 19.9% Increase 7,936 -
unobservable inputs transaction method K E (2023: N/A) 11
ERTABRBAREN LD mHE - RN RH % (ZZZ=%:THERA)
BRE S
Unlisted equity investment Market Approach — Latest Volatility 0.8% Increase 19,576 20,105
transaction method K& (2023: 17.9%) &0
FEmESERE MHE - KRR 5% (Z2Z=5:17.9%)
27,512 20,105
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Disclosure of valuation process used by
the Group and valuation techniques and
inputs used in fair value measurements at
31 December: (Continued)

For recurring fair value measurement of financial
asset at FVTOCI categorised within Level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy, if the discount of lack of control
to the valuation model were 5% higher/lower while all
the other variables were held constant, the carrying
amount of the financial asset at FVTOCI would
decrease/increase by approximately HK$1,443,000
(2023: HK$1,112,000).

For recurring fair value measurement of financial
assets at FVTPL categorised within Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy, if the volatility to the valuation model
were 5% higher/lower while all the other variables
were held constant,
financial assets at FVTPL would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$1,376,000 (2023: HK$1,005,000).

the carrying amount of the

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a)

(b)

Operating segment information

Information reported to the executive directors of
the Company, being the chief operating decision
makers, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance. Since the
Group’s business activities are organised into a single
operating segment, being the investments in securities
listed on recognised stock exchanges and unlisted
investments with a potential for earnings growth
and capital appreciation, no segment information is
presented other than entity-wide disclosures.

Geographical information

The revenue of the Group are solely generated from
Hong Kong during the years ended 31 December 2024
and 2023 while the Group has no non-current assets
as at 31 December 2024 and 2023.

e B ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WNF+-_A=t+—HIFE

7. AREFE(E)

(c)

REAEEEANGEBRURR
tZA=+-—BAAREHETERAN
fEERMMEAE: ()

RMRARNBEERE=ZEBRAADENER
AEREMAZEKEINEZCREERN
LEERAAREFEMS  WEEBER ST
Wl HEPT B L IR 5% ¢ T AT A E b &
ERFIAEZ ARAABEREME2EKE
IR CREEMEREMERZRD GG
1,443,000 T (ZE = =4 : 1,112,000
TT) e

RRAABEBRE=ZBRADENR
BERERIGZeMEENKTE ML

55 5
S

c

J

Bt 8mE - ik ERER B2 0, % >
5% MAEEMESERFIE  WIRAR

ERERIERZEMEENRTEBE
0,/ 8 > #91,376,0008 T ( — T =~ =4
1,005,000/ 7T ) °

8. HEH

(a)

(b)

REDIMER

Edtéﬁn@ﬁ&qﬂﬁ’”ﬁi’%fﬁﬁﬁﬁzﬁ Gk
TEF(MXTELERRE)ZEHNER -
HRARENEFREIRE —KEDH (B
BRERERAUELR A LTNESFRA
BMNBEERENZEENNFELTRE)

A AEREEAEBOREIN LES
5 BRE #Y
#EE R
e s e IRl Fhulf s o2

=S+-RAEFE - ASENBAEZKRER
BMASBER-_FT_HUER_FT_=%F
TZHA=+—RYEEAFRDEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HEZZ-_WF+-_A=+—HIFE

9. REVENUE 9. WA
Revenue of the Group represented the dividend income AEBENRAESBEARREANERERIIEKZ
from listed equity securities classified as financial assets at T REEFEFORBEBRARERZERNF B
FVTPL and interest income from loan notes. A
2024 2023
—EBE-NEF —E-=
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEx FHET
Dividend income from listed equity securities D8 A A A ERIBEYIERZ
classified as financial assets at FVTPL EFEREFOREKA 254 697
Interest income from loan notes EREENFEWA - 702
254 1,399
10. OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET Hit (B1R) Wz F8#
2024 2023
—EoOmE —F-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHAT
Net unrealised fair value (losses)/gains on D fAAEAAERIB=RIIERZ
equity securities classified as PREEZEREFN
financial assets at FVTPL RERAAE(BE) RE (78,891) 54,869
Net realised gains on disposal of PEARARBERERYEZ
equity securities classified as TREEZ EmE TN
financial assets at FVTPL B2 HE W TR 6,673 251
Net (losses)/gains on equity securities DEREBERAABERBRIEZ
classified as financial assets at FVTPL CREEZE=mESFN
(B8R) kam%8 (72,218) 55,120
Gain on disposal of loan notes (note) EEBEREEN Y (A7) - 3,336
(72,218) 58,456

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
has disposed of two HK$ denominated loan notes issued
by independent third parties, which were measured
at amortised cost, with aggregate principal amount
of HK$50,000,000 (2024: nil) and accrued interest of
approximately HK$212,000 (2024: nil), in exchange for listed
equity securities with carrying amount of approximately
HK$53,548,000 (2024: nil). Immediately after the disposal
of the above-mentioned loan notes, a resulting gain on
disposal of loan notes of approximately HK$3,336,000
(2024: nil) has been recognised in profit or loss.

118 COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED "B XS #ZRER A T

HE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=+—HBIEFE 45
EEHEMDBBILE =5 HITIRE KA
E M A% 4% 450,000,000 T (—F — 4
) K& AR B4 /A212,00056 7T (=T — 04
EINBLTHEEREE UXBREEENA
53,548,000 ;C (Z T Z U 4F : )/ E WA A
BHE-ZRELE FNEREERE HEERER
7)Y 55 493,336,000 L (ZE M F : E)E R
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12.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HILFE

FINANCE COSTS 1. BBEAR

2024 2023
—E-MEF T =

HK$°000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Imputed interest on promissory notes (note 25) ENZWEER B (f1:725) 832 1,029
Interest on margin financing FREENS 34 =
Interest on lease liabilities HEBGENE - 4
866 1,033

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX

(Loss)/profit before tax has been arrived at after charging

the followings:

12. BREAT (BE) 5F

BRBLAT (B518) 8 FIE MR TS HER:

2024 2023
—E-NmE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Directors’ emoluments: =0
— Fee, salaries and allowance - e FHEREM 771 881
— Contributions to defined contribution plan - REFRRET SR ()
(note) 21 21
792 902
Auditor’s remuneration % BLAD B 368 368
Management fees BEEB 653 774
Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets FTREEAENERS - 202
Note: There was no forfeited contribution in respect of the defined Krag: R-E_NMNER_FT-_=Z=F+_HA=+—H
contribution plan available at 31 December 2024 and 2023 I R E KA 8l 2 B R M 3 AT A 1R R
to reduce future contributions. There was no outstanding ARER - RZE_WER_TE_=F+=

contribution to the plan at 31 December 2024 and 2023.

A=+ — B 7R W RS %At 82 5K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HEZZ-_WF+-_A=+—HIFE

13.

120 COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED "B XS #ZRAER A T

INCOME TAX

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
since the Group incurred tax losses during the year ended
31 December 2024.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
since the Group has sufficient tax losses brought forward to
set off against the assessable profits for the year ended 31
December 2023.

The Group is not subject to taxation in other jurisdictions.

Reconciliation between income tax and the Group’s (loss)/
profit before tax at applicable tax rate is set out below:

13. FREH

BE_T_MFEF+_A=+—BLFE AN
AEBEEVBAEBER WAL ERBEENESHEF
B

HE-_Z_=ZF+-_A=Z=+—AHLFE BR
AEEAEREHEBEAIHBEREAFEDN
ERFBEN AW EELRES P HEREATIR
BENS B -

AEEBRABMEM DA EENTIEA

PIERERNKEERERREAE KRB (B
B) R ZHERMT

2024 2023
—E-E —EZ=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FAET
(Loss)/profit before tax BREBLAT (B518) s A (76,810) 53,505
Notional tax on (loss)/profit before tax, BREAT (BE) afzEE
calculated at Hong Kong Profits Tax HIBREBNFHH E16.5%
rate of 16.5% (2023: 16.5%) —E =4 :16.5%):E (12,674) 8,828
Tax effect of expenses not deductible REBBEME T ENAL 2
for tax purpose D4 137 240
Tax effect of income not taxable BARMBANT B2
for tax purpose (42) (115)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised ARG EREOREEE 12,579 2,516
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses BEAERFERHIEBEEN
previously not recognised METE - (11,469)
Income tax Fr 5% — =

As at 31 December 2024,
unused tax losses of approximately HK$379,763,000
(2023: HK$303,529,000) available for offset against future
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of these estimated unused tax losses due to the
unpredictability of the future profit streams. The estimated
unused tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

the Group has estimated

R-ZZBE-—NME+_A=+—B A5BHFEFTR
) AR ITEE 18 49379,763,00008 T (=T - =4
303,529,000 7. ) A] 4 5 85 oK 2R & Fl o AR R
RAERO N IER S A E LGRS A
%}‘ﬁ‘%}éﬂéﬁ&mﬁkwﬁéF et KRB AR
75 85 18 AT LA S R HA 45



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of directors’ emoluments are as

e B ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HILFE

14, BE 2 HA
(a) EEFHFHFEBUOT:

follows:
2024
—E_NF
Contributions
Salaries and to defined
Fees allowances contribution plan Total
e FHERERE REMUIKGEAMK e
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TET TERT TERT TExT
Executive Directors HITES
Wu Ming Gai k2 A - 151 8 159
Chau Wai Hing [EfEE - 264 13 277
Independent non-executive Directors BYEHTES
Chan Man Yi® Rz 74 - - 74
Leung Yin Ting P 126 - - 126
Wong Sze Lok BB 126 - - 126
Lin Hsiu Mei® mEFE 30 - - 30
356 415 21 792
2023
—E-=fF
Contributions to
Salaries and defined contribution
Fees allowances plan Total
wE  HeREE RAEHFGIEMX ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THEL FHET THEL
Executive Directors HITES
Wu Ming Gai ke - 151 8 159
Chau Wai Hing B & & - 264 13 277
Non-executive Director FHTEE
William Keith Jacobsen("! ERAEO 88 - - 88
Independent non-executive Directors BIFHTES
Chan Man Yi®@ REEe 126 - - 126
Leung Yin Ting P 126 - - 126
Wong Sze Lok BB 126 - - 126
466 415 21 902
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_ZT-_WF+-_A=+—BILFE

14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

122 COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSERAERA A

Details of directors’ emoluments are as
follows: (Continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services in connection with management
of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The non-
executive director’s and independent non-executive
directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services as directors of the Company.

U] William Keith Jacobsen resigned as a non-executive

director of the Company on 30 June 2023.

@ Chan Man Yi resigned as an independent non-executive

director of the Company on 1 August 2024.

@ Lin Hsiu Mei was appointed as an independent non-

executive director of the Company on 1 August 2024.

Note: There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration or
payment for compensation for loss of services during

the both years.

Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, five (2023: five) directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in note (a) above.

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023,
there was no discretionary bonus paid or payables to
the directors of the Company.

Directors’ material interests in transaction,
arrangement or contract

Save as disclosed in note 31, no other significant
transaction, arrangement or contract in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company was a
party and in which a director of the Company and the
director’s connected party had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the reporting period or at any time during the reporting
period.

14. EF2HM (&)

(a)

(b)

(c)

EEHFMEREOT: (&)

EXFRATES ZHFM IR R SRR
BERARARAKEEHEBR RS MK
e EXFHIRIERITEERBIIFNTE
EZHFMIRRERERRREEM A -

O ERER-B-ZFEAAZSTABER
ARFRTES

@ RBEER_Z_WFN\A-BHELR
A IEMITES -

@ MEBR_ZE_NFNA-—BEZER
RRABBEIIFRTES

Wi MERNTEEHESRENASHE
EA B S 602 B S B B S 18 o
TEREEHFAL

AREBIEAESFALTH AE(ZE
—TSE RARARBNEENHECEE
7 EXBizE(a) °

REE-_ZFT_NER_FTE_=F1+=A
=t+—BILFE  ARARIEE N ERN
FEEMBIBEEL -

EEERS RYAEGHTNERE
I
BRI EE N RBREHREIHRE
HETEER BEEREARRR/ELH
Hf =7 BARREEREFTHEH
REBPAEERAMBENERESEZA
SEXBHMERRS RHIAH-



15.

16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per
share attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

15.

e B ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WNF+-_A=t+—HIFE

=R (ER) &R
ARAEEAEETRESREE (BR) /&
FIRIA TBIRE E

(Loss)/profit (E18) &F
2024 2023
—E-_NE —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of the BREXNLRE®E (BB /&F
Company for the purposes of calculating HEBFANARARESR A
basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share FEAL (E518) a (76,810) 53,505
Number of shares RHE A
2024 2023
—E-NEF ==
’000 ‘000
TR T
(Restated)
(g&&E51)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares &R E A & #5E ( Eﬁ?‘@ /B
for the purpose of calculating basic and T E A AT A AR
diluted (loss)/earnings per share (note) hnE g (AT EE) 70,984 55,845

Note: The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of calculating basic and diluted earnings per share for
the year ended 31 December 2023 was restated based on the
share consolidation of every ten existing ordinary shares into
one consolidated ordinary share which was become effective
on 2 July 2024 (note 26(ii)).

For the purpose of calculating diluted (loss)/earnings per
share for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, no
adjustment has been made to the weighted average number
of ordinary shares as there are no potential dilutive ordinary
shares outstanding during the years ended 31 December
2024 and 2023.

DIVIDENDS

The board of directors of the Company does not recommend
the payment of any dividend for the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023.

16.

M HEBE-T-_=F+-A=+—RHLEFE
BREXNRBERFNO L BRMETHH-
EREBER-_F-_NFLtA-_AERNET K
BELEBREMFA—REMEBRELES
(I 7E26(ii)) °

Mt EBRE=—T _ N R =_"F =05 =H
=+t-BLEENGKREE (BR) /&M
FHRBE_F_OFER_FT_=F+_-4
STt HALFEYEEEHEEBRR RALE
HEBRMEFOBELHE-

AEFETERMBE_ZT_HFR_F
Ft_A=+T-"BALFERNEMRKRES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_ZT-_WF+-_A=+—BILFE

17. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. BRER®ER®E
Furniture
Office and
equipment fixtures Total
MAERE BRREE R
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THET FAET
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2023, W-—ZTE_=%—-—HF—Q8-
31 December 2023, —EZ=F+ZR=+—8"
1 January 2024 and —E_WHFE-A—RBRK
31 December 2024 —EMF+-—HA=+—H 537 572 1,109
Accumulated depreciation REINE
At 1 January 2023, RZTE_=F—H—H8"
31 December 2023, —E_=F+ZA=+—8"
1 January 2024 and —EZNFE—-A—BX
31 December 2024 —E-WmFE+=-RA=+—H 537 572 1,109

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2024

BRE &
RZE-_NF+=-A=+—H

At 31 December 2023

R=F—_=%+ - A=Ff=8

The above items of plant and equipment are depreciated on
a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

LA E REREEE AERER T FXRFTE:

Office equipment 20% I NE 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20% R REE 20%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HILFE

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. ERREEE
Leased
property
HEWE
HK$’000
FET
At 1 January 2023 R-ZEZ=F—HA—H 202
Depreciation e (202)
At 31 December 2023, and 1 January 2024 and RZE-_=ZF+-_A=+—8"
31 December 2024 —EZNF-A—BR
e e i = —
Right-of-use assets of the Group represented the lease REBMERAEEEENAEMENHEERY-
arrangement for the office premise. The lease term was HEZFT-_=F+-A=+—HLEFEMNH
two years for the lease during the year ended 31 December HRME ZHEANEREBEEZE_ZT_=F+=H
2023. Such lease has been expired during the year ended 31 =+—HIEFEAEM-
December 2023.
2024 2023
—E-@F —E=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets FHEEEMNITEERA - 202
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENTE
(included in finance costs) (Bt AMBER) - 4
Expenses related to short term lease BEHEEEHE o HAX 286 88
Details of total cash outflows for leases is set out in note MERSTHRENFAEBSEHNMFE30(c) °
30(c).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_WE+-_A=+—HIFE

19. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

19. BE ANRBEREMEWRIE

2024 2023
—E-mEF —EZ=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FH&IT
Deposits and other receivables R e K& E b FEURIE 171 54
Prepayments TEfHFRIA 45 284
216 338
20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 20. EARERERIIRZEMEE

2024 2023
—E-mEF —EZ=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET

Listed equity securities: R ES
Equity securities — Listed in Hong Kong BmEsF - RNEB LT 27,070 12,197
Equity securities — Listed in the U.S. BmE s - NER LT 69,067 140,004
96,137 152,201
Unlisted equity investments FELmERKRE 19,576 20,105
115,713 172,306
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued) 20. BAAEREBERIEzSRMEE (F)
At the end of the reporting period, details of the Group's R ERR FREE T EREIFNFBOT

major equity securities are as follows:

Accumulated
unrealised fair
value gains/(losses)

Net assets/ on investment
Proportion (liabilities) recognised in % of total
of investee’s Market attributable to profit or loss assets of the
Stock name As at 31 December capital owned Cost value the investment during the year Group
REFER
BER REEGEE RERABIAZRE
RENT BE/ RAAERLAE HEREEE
REEH R+=B=+-H ERLA A wHEE (BEEH) K&/ (B8) BENEIL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THT TR THET
Listed equity securities
LIHERES
Hong Kong
4
Tencent Holdings Limited (nofe (i) 2024 0.00%* 4,491 5,421 1,574 930 3.68%
WBRERERRDR (A1) —EZNF
2023 0.00%* 5,405 5,021 1,727 (384) 2.47%
—E-=f
Alibaba Group Holding Limited (nofe (ii)) 2024 0.00%* 5,896 4,919 3,598 (977) 3.34%
WMEEBSBERERDA (M (i) —EZpmF
202 0.00%* 1,263 1,278 858 15 0.63%
—E-=f
BYD Company Limited (note (iii)) 2024 - - - - - -
ta R HR AR (M5 (i) —EopmF
2023 0.00%* 3,111 3,216 2,113 105 1.58%
—E-=f
CMOC Group Limited (note (iv)) 2024 - - - - - -
RERIEXEERAERAA —E-mF
(Hizt(iv)) 202 0.00%* 2,478 2,191 9,584 (287) 1.08%
. =
Semiconductor Manufacturing 2024 0.00%* 9,686 11,289 11,064 1,603 7.66%
International Corporation (nofe (v)) —T-WE
REREKERYERRAR 202 - - - - - -
(K&t (v)) —T-=
Xiaomi Corporation (note (vi)) 2024 0.00%* 3,216 3,202 742 (14) 217%
NREE (B i) —ZomE
2023 - - - - - -
—E-=F
Midea Group Co. Ltd. (note (vii)) 2024 0.00%* 1,547 1,390 451 (157) 0.94%
ENEEROBRAR (A7 (vi)) —E-mE
2023 - - - - - -
—E-=F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HEZZ-_WF+-_A=+—HIFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued)

Proportion
of investee’s
Stock name As at 31 December capital owned
EER
REDNTF
REEH R+=ZA=t-H BRI
The U.S.
EY
Readen Holding Corporation 2024 7.95%
(“Readen”) (note (viii) —E-ME
Readen Holding Corporation 2023 7.97%
([Readen |) (42 (viii)) —T-=F
Winchester Holding Group (“Winchester”) 2024 1.05%
(note (ix)) e Sl 11
Winchester Holding Group 2023 1.05%
([Winchester |) (4 (ix)) —T-=F
Sante Technology Holdings Inc. 2024 23.44%
(“Sante”) (note (x)) ke ol 115
Sante Technology Holdings Inc. 2023 23.44%
([sante ]) (H1i#(x)) =%
Luduson G Inc. (“Luduson”) (note (xi)) 2024 1.82%
Luduson G Inc. ([Luduson|) (Mt (xi)) —ZE=MF
2023 2.04%
—E-=%
GSG Group Inc. (‘GSGG") (note (xii)) 2024 14.43%
GSG Group Inc. ([GSGG |) (Hfat(xi)) —BZM%
2023 -
“E-=f
Unlisted equity securities
kTSRS
LNPR Group Inc. (“LNPR?) (note (xiii)) 2024 5.18%
LNPR Group Inc. ([LNPR ) (##ét(xii)) =T =M%
2023 7.02%
ey S GE

* Less than 0.01%

Dividend income of approximately HK$254,000 (2023: HK$697,000)
(note 9) was recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31
December 2024.

Except for investment in LNPR, Luduson, Readen, GSGG and
Sante are held by subsidiaries of the Company, all of the above
investments are directly held by the Company.

Cost

A
HK$°000
TET

12,046

12,046

20,966

20,966

29,598

29,598

32,000

32,000

9,700

24,227

24,445
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20. RARNERERIIR2EMEE (&)

Accumulated
unrealised fair
value gains/(losses)

Net assets/ on investment
(liabilities) recognised in % of total
Market attributable to profit or loss assets of the
value the investment during the year Group
REFEER

REEEEE REZABAZRE
BE/ RARERAAE HEKEEE

mEEE (BEFH) Wi#/ (FR) BENEIX
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FTEL
3,569 5,729 (8,477) 2.42%
6,692 5,008 (5,354) 3.30%
41,933 35 20,967 28.44%
69,388 37 48,922 34.42%
14,327 (31) (15,271) 9.72%
43,680 10,781 14,082 21.51%
400 2,751 (31,600) 0.27%
17,040 929 (14,960) 8.39%
7,936 (174) (1,764) 5.38%
19,576 (51) (4,651) 13.28%
20,105 305 (4,340) 9.9%

x £720.01%

 E_FNFEFT A=+ RLEFE REBEHET
R 2 451/\%@254 000/% 7t (=% = = 4 : 697,000

% % LNPR - Luduson * Readen - GSGG } Sante #)%
ERARBMBARBEIIN RRAREEFAF LI
BIRE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued)

The Group held financial assets at FVTPL of approximately
HK$115,713,000 (2023: HK$172,306,000), representing approximately
78.47% of the Group's total assets (2023: 84.87%).

Notes:

(i) Tencent Holdings Limited, incorporated in the Cayman
Islands, is principally engaged in the provision of value-added
service, FinTech and business services and online advertising

services.

(ii)  Alibaba Group Holding Limited, incorporated in the Cayman
Islands, provides the technology infrastructure and marketing

platforms.

(iii) BYD Company Limited (“BYD”), established in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”), principally engaged in the
manufacture and sales of transportation equipment. BYD is
also engaged in the manufacture and sales of electronic parts

and components and electronic devices for daily use.

(iv) CMOC Group Limited, established in the PRC, is mainly
engaged in the mining, smelting, processing and trading of

molybdenum, tungsten, copper and other metals.

(v)  Semiconductor Manufacturing International Corporation,
incorporated in the Cayman Islands, primarily engaged in the
manufacture and testing of semiconductor integrated circuit
wafers.

e B ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HILFE

20. BOARERESZYRZSMEE (&)
RAEBERBRBEERAAERBRINEZSREED
115,713,000 7T (—Z & — =4 :172,306,000/%5
L) HMEAREBEELENTSAT% (T - =F:
84.87%) °

Brat

() BAERERAR NE2HESEMRL =
RERMEERY SRHUBRREERBEER
FEERS -

(i) MEEEREEZERAEBRAG RESHESEM
FRA IR ER S EAREHTES -

(i) HRHBBRHBERAR (Mtb@]) RAEEAR
HME([FE])KY TEREIBREOR
ERHEE L THMIRHEEFTSHHERBEAE
FRBHRE RIHE -

(iv) RBEEIEXEERGERRR - RPBEKT -
FTEREH B MEEMOESBRORKR RE:
MIRES-

(v) FEEBERERNEERAT NEeHS

AMKY TEREFERERNERAFOY
R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2024

HEZZ

—HE+ZA=t—HLFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(vii)

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

Xiaomi Corporation, incorporated in the Cayman lIslands, is
a China-based company principally engaged in the research,
development and sales of smartphones, Internet of things
and lifestyle products, the provision of Internet services, and

investment business.

Midea Group Co., Ltd., established in the PRC, is a China-
based company principally engaged in the manufacture and

distribution of household electronics.

Readen, incorporated in the U.S., is a venture capital
corporation which is active in the Fintech, online payment and

E-commerce industries.

Winchester, incorporated in the U.S.,
in South Africa.

is manufacturing of cars

Sante, incorporated in the U.S., specialises in assisting Asian
entrepreneurs and high value startups access the U.S. capital
market through services like reverse takeovers and public
listings as well as serving as a “Company Doctor” to clients
already listed on Over-the-counter and NASDAQ markets.
The directors of the Company consider no practical ability to
exercise significant influence to the relevant activities of Sante

and classified as financial assets at FVTPL.

Luduson, incorporated in the U.S., principally engages in
the business of building and fostering relationships between

leading influencers and brands.

GSGG, incorporated in the U.S.,

stage company focused on investment consultancy for real

is originally a development-

estate in Asia, has recently expanded into the medical devices

industry.

LNPR, incorporated in the U.S., which is principally engaged
in online education business. According to the management
of LNPR, they are seeking listing on NASDAQ in U.S. and
already submitted the application to the authority in the U.S..

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, no trading securities of the

Group were pledged to a securities broker to secure margin loan

borrowed by the Group.
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21.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FVTOCI

Unlisted equity investment designated at
financial asset at FVTOCI
wE

e B ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HILFE

BERBAREREMEEE
SR S RRE ERIIE LT AR

BEAAEREMZEHKREZIRZ2E/ME
E

2024 2023

—E_MF —E-=F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FH T FET

28,865 22,241

On 7 December 2018, the Group had subscribed 20%
equity interest in an Anguilla incorporated private entity,
Perfect Path, which is engaged in gold mining business at a
consideration of HK$18,500,000.

Despite the Group holds 20% of the voting power in Perfect
Path, however, under contractual arrangements, the other
shareholders control the composition of the board of
directors of Perfect Path and have control over Perfect Path.
The directors of the Company consider that the Group does
not have significant influence over Perfect Path, and it is
therefore the unlisted equity investments are designated at
financial asset at FVTOCI.

As at 31 December 2024, the fair value of the equity
investments was approximately HK$28,865,000 (2023:
HK$22,241,000), representing approximately 19.58% of the
total assets of the Group as at 31 December 2024 (2023:
10.95%).

As mentioned above, the Group neither has control nor
significant influence over Perfect Path and therefore in
assessing the fair value of Perfect Path at the end of
each reporting period, the Group would take into account
the investment strategy of the controlling shareholders of
Perfect Path as well as the determination of the valuation
techniques thereon.

Having carefully considered the uncertainties over the
economic and the operating environment where the gold
mine of Perfect Path locates and operates, the shareholders
of Perfect Path had reached the consensus, to proactively
approach potential buyer in realising the investment of
the gold mine development so benefited by the increasing
of gold price these years so that alternative investment
opportunities can be identified to reduce investment risk due
to uncertainties.

W_ZE—-NF+_AtB KAEBMUKRE
18,500,000 7T 72 B 1A &2 == 1y 5k M Ak SZ M9 FL &
H 22 Perfect Path #920% A% 4 - 1t = S B HKE
ES0

B & 7N £ [E 35 4 Perfect Path #920% 3= R4 - A
i RE A & BE - H A IR % Perfect Path
BEFEMABAR  WiEHlPerfect Path e AR
A E ER AAN%EE Y Perfect Path I 8 X 77
Z2H ARFLITREREREEAEALER
Hih2EBEINEZSBEE-

R-Z-ME+-_A=+—B BERED
NREH 528,865,000 T (— T - =4
22,241,000 L) * HVEAEBE T _MF+ =
A=+ —HB#ABEM19.58% (T - =
10.95% ) °

o0 SRt - ANEE B 4 Perfect Path B £ 458 il -
MEEKNFE D B Perfect Path R
EMEMARHAAER A& BT =E EPerfect
Path 22 f% B% 32 59 4% & 55 B DA & 48 B8 &9 (& (8 B i

BE-

1R NE Z B Perfect Path & 7% P 78 3 [ & 18 0 2
OB DA R S BIRIBEK A E A X - Perfect
Path IR E B EM L BEEBETEH N
B ALEFRIZNESER LROSERME
BE UEeADEBEREERS ROTHEE
E=EK NI ERR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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21. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FVTOCI (Continued)

Market approach was used for valuation of the investment
in Perfect Path. The inputs into the valuation model as at 31

December 2024 and 2023 were as follows:

Perfect Path
Perfect Path

Subscription date

REEAH

Total number of shares held

P R 19 42 85

Subscription price

REBE

Proportion of investee’s capital owned
FEERRERANEARLE

Dividend income received during the year
F N BT ICER AR B 1A

Net assets attributable to the investment
REELEETHE

Fair value gain/(loss) recognised during the year

AFEERAERHRABYE ()
Discount for lack of control

R EEIE TR

Gold resources contained
EENERER

% of premium in gold price
HEEBREERD L

Valuation methodology

HER =

Fair value performed by:

DR EEE:

21. &

RO
i (
}T{

&)

VEREMEERESIR2EME

KA 5 AY R Perfect Path (1R & #1745 1E -

RZZEZWMFR
BEEN G ABENT :

2024
a2

7 December 2018
“E-N\E+ZAtHA
200,000

200,000
HK$18,500,000
18,500,0005% 7T

20%

20%

HK$35,460,000
35,460,0007% 7T
HK$6,624,000
6,624,000 T
18.6%

18.6%

8.6 ton

8.6M

6.7%

6.7%

Market Approach
Wi

Access Partner Professional
Services Limited

DREEXBRBEERAT
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=+ -A=t+—Hf

2023
—EC-=F

7 December 2018
- N\F+ZAtHA
200,000

200,000
HK$18,500,000
18,500,000/% 7T

20%

20%

HK$27,801,000
27,801,000/% 7T
(HK$2,662,000)
(2,662,000/% )
20%

20%

8.6 ton

8.6/

6.5%

6.5%

Market Approach
%%

Access Partner Professional

Services Limited
TRBEXREER QA



22.

23.

24,

25.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WNF+-_A=t+—HIFE

AMOUNTS DUE FROM SECURITIES 22. BUWEFELE
BROKERS
Amounts due from securities brokers represent deposits ERBARLETBEEAR S EHREME R
placed with securities brokers for the trading of listed BABENER EREEN Z0% £0.01%
investments which are unsecured, bearing interest at 0% ZEZ=F:10%ZE0.01%) WFFEFEFE
to 0.01% (2023: 0% to 0.01%) per annum and repayable W /EIR BRE R o W M BEE W EE S5 A 2 RIE R
on demand. No ageing analysis is disclosed in respect of BREON -ARAEERA BHERNAEEDN
amounts due from securities brokers. In the opinion of the EBME REBESMIWEEINMEBE-
directors of the Company, an ageing analysis does not give
additional value in view of the Group’s business nature.
CASH AND BANK BALANCES 23. RERBITHER
Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market interest RITEBRR T _NMFER_T=_=F+=H
rates as at 31 December 2024 and 2023. =+ —BRBITMSBMEGFR -
OTHER PAYABLES 24. HibEMAR
2024 2023
ZEZlF —EBo=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Other payables H A T 3,449 2,437
Unclaimed dividend payables =) AR 2R XA JE AT IR B 4 4
3,453 2,441
PROMISSORY NOTES 25. AfFE

As at 31 December 2024, the Company had two (2023:
two) promissory notes outstanding to two individuals which
are independent parties not connected to the Group with
aggregate principal amount of HK$13,500,000 (2023:
HK$13,500,000). Promissory note with principal amount of
HK$3,500,000 bearing original fixed interest rate of 6.5%
was matured in March 2024 (the “Unsettled Promissory
Note”) while the promissory note with principal amount of
HK$10,000,000 bearing fixed interest rate of 8% will be
matured in March 2025.

MN-ZE-_NFE+_A=Z+—B - ARaIABD
—E-=F W) ARE#% 513,500,000
7T (=F = =4:13,500,0005 7T ) < & 2=t
ARBETEHASEYEBFECBIALT KNS
8 43,500,000 T« R E | K 56.5% H & =
ERZZE-_NE=AEMB([REEXFE]) -
if 48 € %8 /410,000,0007% 7T« & & 7| & 58% K
ENEHER _ZE_HAF= A58
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25.

134 COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED "B XS #ZRAER A T

PROMISSORY NOTES (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Unsettled
Promissory Note with principal amount of HK$3,500,000
was matured in March 2024 and remained unsettled at the
date of the maturity. On 31 December 2024, the bondholder
of the Unsettled Promissory Note and the Company signed
an extension agreement (the “Agreement”) in which (i) the
principal amount of approximately HK$2,941,000, after
partial repayment of approximately HK$559,000 being
made by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2024, was deferred for repayment from 31 December 2024
to 31 December 2025; (ii) the accrued interest from the
date of the maturity to 31 December 2024 was determined
to be approximately HK$41,000; and (iii) such deferred
repayment in principal amount will be repaid by agreed
instalments during the year ending 31 December 2025, with
the total interest to be paid by the Group of approximately
HK$205,000.

As such, the maturity date of the Unsettled Promissory
Note will be on 31 December 2025 and classified as current
liabilities as at 31 December 2024. The promissory note with
principal amount of HK$10,000,000 matured in March 2025
is classified as current liabilities as at 31 December 2024.

The effective interest rates of the Unsettled Promissory Note
and the remaining promissory note are 9.59% and 7.96%
(2023: 6.55% and 7.96%) respectively as at 31 December
2024.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the financial
impact arising from the modification of the Unsettled
Promissory Note was considered immaterial to the
consolidated financial statements.

Up to the date of the approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the Group has made the scheduled payments of
the principal and interest of the Unsettled Promissory Note
in accordance with the Agreement.

25.

AN E (E)
HEZZ-_WNF+_A=+—HLEFE X
%8 53,500,0008 L2 REEEANER -_Z =N
FZARE REBADKREE - R_T-_NF
+ZA=Z+—B REBANZEZEEFHEA
HARNRBEITESRGZ ([HE)) EP@H)Ee
492,941,000 L (KALEREBEE T -0
F+-A=+—HIEFEEEIH 4559,000
BLB)E_Z-_NFE+_A=+—BLH=
ZERFF+ZA=+—HEE: (VA A
E-ZT-_NF+ A=+ HWEFEET
AB#141,0008 70 K (i) ZEELEERET SR
REBE-—E-_AF+_A=+—HLEFEEH
ENHEE MASEAINOFERENA
205,000/ 7T °

At AEEANENIHBAEAE_T-_AF
+-A=+-—H8 ¥YR=_FT-_mMF+=_A=+—
HofARREEE - AN& % /410,000,000 TH
ENERZE-_AF=REBH UHEAER=
T_NF+-_A=+—HHRHEE-

RZE-_NFE+_A=+—H KEEEFE
MHRTENENERFES B A9.59% K% 7.96%
—E =4 :6.55% N7.96%) °

ARAREERR ERREEANEMELEN
MBEFEHRAMBBRRALTEKN

BERERAUBHRRERLEZ R AEEE
REBZ RPN REEANEORS RAE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HILFE

25. PROMISSORY NOTES (Continued) 25. AR (&
The details of the promissory notes for the year ended 31 HEZZ-_NF+-_A=+T—HILEFEBBK
December 2024 are set out below: NEHFBHINAT
2024 2023
ZEZQlF T =F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
At 1 January Hn—HA—H 14,335 14,162
Imputed interest charged (note 11) WERR HEE RS (M at11) 832 1,029
Partial repayment of principal during FARHEELRS
the year (559) -
Interest paid during the year FAZABFE (669) =
At 31 December R=B="F—H 13,939 14,335
Less: Amount due within one year and R —FRIBENEE 28BA
classified as current liabilities mB B & (13,939) (4,335)
Amount due over one year and classified R—FRINBNEE D8R
as non-current liabilities SEMBEE - 10,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. B4
Number of shares Amount
RGEE &8
HK$’000
FHET

Authorised: HE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each, at RZEZ=F—H—B ZZ2=Z=%F

1 January 2023, 31 December 2023 and +-A=t—HEk-_ZT-_F—A

1 January 2024 —HBMEREEIIBTHNE AR 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Capital reorganisation (note (ii)) WRAEM (Mt (i) 90,000,000,000 =
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at RZEZMF+=A=+—AH0HK

31 December 2024 SREE0.01E LML AR 100,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at RZZE-_=F—FA—BHEREE

1 January 2023 0BT EER 518,006,664 51,801
Issue of shares on placement (note (i) TR E R BATRRGD (H15E()) 86,334,444 8,633
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at RZBE-_=F+-_RA=+—HK

31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 —EME-A-BHNEREE

0BT ERR 604,341,108 60,434

Issue of shares on placement (note (iii)) B &5 B B 1T AR D (AT 2 (i) ) 103,601,332 10,360
Capital reorganisation (note (ii)) WRAZ A (A (i) (637,148,196) (70,086)
Issue of shares on placement (note (iv)) fe & KB AT IR (772 (iv)) 14,158,848 142
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at RZBE-_MF+-_A=+—HHNERK

31 December 2024 T 50.01)% 7T ) 5 i % 84,953,092 850
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

(if)

On 26 June 2023, the Company and a placing agent entered
into a placing agreement in respect of the placement of
86,334,444 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at a price of
HK$0.200 per share under general mandate, to not less than
six placees who are independent third parties to the Group
(the “Placement A”). The Placement A was completed on 14
July 2023.

The net proceeds from the Placement A amounted to
approximately HK$17,102,000, after deducting expense of
approximately HK$165,000. Approximately HK$8,633,000
and HK$8,469,000 were credited to share capital and share

premium respectively upon the issue of the new shares.

On 30 April 2024, the Company announced to implement the

capital reorganisation (the “Capital Reorganisation”) involving:

(a) the share consolidation whereby every ten (10) issued
and unissued shares of the Company at par value
of HK$0.1 each will be consolidated into one (1)

consolidated share at par value of HK$1.0 each;

(b) immediately following the share consolidation, the
capital reduction whereby the issued share capital of
the Company will be reduced by (a) rounding down
the total number of consolidated shares in the issued
share capital of the Company to the nearest whole
number by eliminating any fraction of a consolidated
share in the issued share capital of the Company;
and (b) cancelling the paid up capital of the Company
to the extent of HK$0.99 on each of the then issued
consolidated shares such that the par value of each
issued consolidated share will be reduced from HK$1.00
to HK$0.01;

(c) immediately following the share reduction, the sub-
division, whereby each authorised shares be subdivided
into one hundred (100) authorised new shares at par
value HK$0.01 each so that immediately following the

Capital Reorganisation; and

e B ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HILFE

26. BRA (&)
Hiat -

(i) RZZE-_=ZF XAt A AEEEEER
B VEEHZE RAEBERT DR ANEEER
ANAXEEBIE=7)BRE—BEEUNEGR
0.2003% 7T & 1% Fit 86,334,444 8% 5 X B 1E0.1
BrHEAR(EEFEA]) EEFEBEAR
—ER_=ZHFEA+THBREK

RINBRF 165,000 L% EEEEHARMB
FRIEHEE 217,102,000 7T R FT AR 1T R
8,633,000/% 7T 128,469,000/ 7t % Bl 5+ A BX &

B 5 1B -

(i) RZZB-_MFOA=+RH ARAEMEMEAR
REA([RAER]) - BRATEE:

(a) ETEOAH BUET(10)REREE
01T E BT RABITAARMMN
AR~ (1)BEREET.CETTMHA HR

(lk

(b) BBERMAMHRETRABR  A2FC
BATIRAH B BRIA T TR HR : (a) 788
ARBEBHITRAREHROHOERNT
BARG e AR BB BEITRA PSP
BpaBR T RBEREOEE: K(b)
EERCETAMHRN D EREH.99
BLABERCRTAMBROZEER
1.00/& TTHIA 20.018 7T - #EULEUR A R
Az BB AR A

(c) ZBREBROHREBETHRA Bt SRE
ERD R4 A— B (100) IR SR EE0.01
BILZATEHBRG  AEBBERAEA:
K
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26. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(if)

(iif)

138 COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED "B XS #ZRAER A T

(Continued)

(d)  immediately following the capital reduction and sub-
division, the share premium of the Company will be
applied to be reduced to nil, while the balance will be
transferred to the contributed surplus of the Company

within the meaning of the Companies Act.

The Capital Reorganisation was resolved by the shareholders
of the Company on 27 June 2024 and become effective on 2
July 2024. Details are set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 30 April 2024 and 2 July 2024 and the circular
of the Company dated 30 May 2024.

Immediately after the Capital Reorganisation, (i) share capital
of approximately HK$70,086,000; (ii) share premium of
approximately HK$71,394,000; and (iii) accumulated losses of
the Company of approximately HK$44,145,000 at 2 July 2024,
being the effective date of the Capital Reorganisation, has
been transferred to the contributed surplus of the Company,
with credit of the contributed surplus of approximately
HK$97,335,000. The cost directly attributable to the Capital
Reorganisation of approximately HK$418,000 has been

debited to share premium of the Company.

On 13 May 2024, the Company and a placing agent entered
into a placing agreement in respect of the placement of
103,601,332 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each to independent
investors at a price of HK$0.1 per share (the “Placement B”).

The Placement B was completed on 24 May 2024.

The net proceeds from the Placement B amounted to
approximately HK$10,248,000, after deducting expense of
approximately HK$112,000. Approximately HK$10,360,000
was credited to share capital and approximately HK$112,000
was debited to the share premium upon the issue of the new

shares.

(if)

(iii)

26. BRA (&)
Wizt (4)

(&)

(d)  EBERARHIR & IFAIR - AR A H) B i
EBERESRET MAERKEANRREME
MARFBEBERE-

BRASHER-_Z-_MOFENA=-++tBHEAR
AREBEBYN _E_MNE+A-_BER -5
BERAQRRABHASTS-_NFONA=THK
T NME+LAZBZRAMRARTIBSHE RS
ToNERA=ZTBZEEK-

ZRERAREAARE (i) IR 4)70,086,000/7% 7T ; (ii)
& 17 %5 (B #971,394,00058 7T ¢ & (i) A2 7R =
T_NFE+LAZH (BRASHEXBH)NR
FTE 1B 444,145,000 TEBARR A ERR
AR Wit A BB A # 497,335,000/ 7T © iR A
SHEEEEGRKAL418,0008 TER AR TR
1975 (B 7 0Bk o

R-ZZE-_MERA+=A AQrREREERE
FIVEEERE N EEREIIRE ALETR0.1
75 LB /& B £103,601,332% & X m {H0.178 7T
VEBR ((RESEB]) REFEBR T
ZNERA=Z+HATK-

R IR B X 49112,0007%8 L% - BB & BIEB AT {5
FRIAF 58 A5 #910,248,00078 70+ A FTAR F AT B -
#910,360,0005% 7T 51 A B& 2K & 49112,0007% 7T 74
R& 19 %% & R 0Bk ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iv)  On 23 August 2024, the Company and a placing agent entered
into a placing agreement in respect of the placement of
14,158,848 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each to independent
investors at a price of HK$0.3 per share (the “Placement C”).

The Placement C was completed on 11 September 2024.

The net proceeds from the Placement C amounted to
approximately HK$4,174,000, after deducting expense of
approximately HK$74,000. Approximately HK$142,000 and
HK$4,032,000 were credited to share capital and share

premium respectively upon the issue of the new shares.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maximise the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital
structure of the Group comprises all components of capital
and reserves.

The Group reviews the capital structure frequently by
considering the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. The Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of
new debts, redemption of existing debts or selling assets
to reduce debts. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for
the Group to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange with
public float of at least 25% of the shares.

e B ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HILFE

26. IRA (&)

Btst: (&)

(ivy R-Z-MENA-+=ZHB ARFEHEER
BIVEERZ NAEBABIREANT
f%0.37% JT {8 1% fic % 14,158,8480% 5 % @ {£0.01
BrHEmR ((RESEC]) - BEFHECKH
—E-MEAA+—BEK-

RMBFAZH74,0008 0%  BEESECHER
EFEE B H4,174,00008 70 INEFT IR BT - 4
142,0007% 7T & #14,032,0007% 7t 2 5l 5T A B A

B )4 (8 o

AEEEREARNEEABBERGEERES
REH&EFE REAKEEAFELLE ¥
R RKERARENRREF REEHE R
EEREARBENRBITRMEK

AEEBBERESKAREGREAHERN
R REBZEAGB AEEEEBX MK
B BTk RRDEBARBETHER M
OREEHFREEEENREES KFEHHE
BREANEB - REAE T _NER T =
FT_A=+t—"BLFER EREANBZR.
BRKEFIEELTAE-

WME — 51 ER SR B 1M B AN B RGN B A0 R A
HEBIHM EmHAi EARFERERI R
P47 #925% ©
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27. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 27. XATMBRRARBEER
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
2024 2023
—E-NmE —EZ=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Non-current assets IRBEE
Plant and equipment = K& - =
Investments in subsidiaries RHBRATZRE - 27
- 27
Current assets REBEE
Deposits and prepayments e MIEARE 99 338
Financial assets at FVTPL BERARBERERIIECEREE 69,720 82,085
Financial asset at FVTOCI ERARBEREMZEKETRZ
TREE 28,865 22,241
Amounts due from securities brokers & U 75 % 48 40 28 2,471 338
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B B A B RN IE 40,909 94,603
Cash and bank balances Be MIRITHE 191 7,799
142,255 207,404
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables H b FE S 3R 3,453 2,441
Promissory notes YR 13,939 4,335
17,392 6,776
Net current assets REBEEZFE 124,863 200,628
Total assets less current liabilities #AEERARBEE 124,863 200,655
Non-current liability EREBEE
Promissory notes ZENE - 10,000
NET ASSETS EEFHE 124,863 190,655
Capital and reserves EAXREE
Share capital (note 26) WA (Kt iE26) 850 60,434
Reserves (note) R (i) 124,013 130,221
TOTAL EQUITY 4R 5 124,863 190,655
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

e B ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_WE+-_A=+—HIFE

27. XRFMBRAKEER (R)

Note: Movement in Company’s reserves is presented in the Wit ARRRBHEBHEINOT
followings:
Share Contributed  Financial assets at
premium surplus FVTOCI reserve ~ Accumulated
(note 28(b)(i)) (note 28(b)(ii)) (note 28(b)(iii) losses Total
BAREREM
2ENREIRZ
R % E EHRH LREERR
(BEE28(b)(i))  (Hiz28(b)(ii)) (B i228(b)(iii)) E5 “e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAR TAT TAL
At 1 January 2023 R-ZE-=%—F—H 63,455 107,918 6,403 (117,913) 59,863
Profit for the year FEE - - = 64,551 64,551
Other comprehensive expense, net of tax: Eft 2 EE X (FIBH ) :
— Fair value loss on financial asset ~RAAEREMZEREFEZ
at FVTOCI SREENRAEES - - (2,662) - (2,662)
Total comprehensive income for the year SR 2EYALE - - (2,662) 64,551 61,889
Issue of shares on placement A FREEEBARTRG
(note 26(i)) (Hi:#26(i)) 8,634 - - - 8,634
Cost of issuing new shares under REEESBARTHR KA
placement A (note 26(i)) (Hi226() (165) - - - (165)
At 31 December 2023 and WZZE-Z=#+-A=+-AK
1 January 2024 —E-pmE—-A—H 71,924 107,918 3,741 (53,362) 130,221
Loss for the year FEEE - - - (86,420) (86,420)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax: ~ Ef1 2 Yz (MBRFIE)
- Fair value loss on financial asset ~BARBREMDZERENEL
at FVTOC! SREENAAERE - . 6,624 = 6,624
Total comprehensive expense for the year X2 R % A5 - - 6,624 (86,420) (79,796)
Capital Reorganisation (note 26{ii)) BREM (f1i£26(i)) (71,394) 97,335 - 44,145 70,086
Cost of Capital Reorganisation (note 26(ii)) & & HF A ( 41:226(ii)) (418) - = = (418)
Issue of shares on placements Band C 5 &=EB K C %17 ()
(notes 26ii)) and (iv)) (Hi2E26(ii)  (iv)) 4,106 - 3 e 4,106
Cost of issuing new shares under REEEEBRCETHRZMA
placements B and C (notes 26iii) (Hi226(ii) & (iv))
and (iv)) (186) . 2 L (186)
At 31 December 2024 RZE-ME+=-A=+—H 4,032 205,253 10,365 (95,637) 124,013
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HEZZ-_WF+-_A=+—HIFE

28. RESERVES
(a) Group
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i)  Share premium

Share premium represents the amount by
which the issue price of shares exceeds the
par value of those shares and is distributable
to shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts
as and when they fall due in the ordinary course
of business.

(ii)  Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company arose as
a result of the capital reorganisation that the entire
amount standing to the credit of the share premium
account of the Company was reduced to nil and the
credit arising from such reduction be transferred to
an existing account of the Company designated as
the contributed surplus account of the Company.

(iif) Financial asset at FVTOCI/ reserve

Financial asset at FVTOCI reserve represents
the cumulative net change in fair value of equity
investments held at the end of the reporting period
and recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for equity instruments in note 4.

29. NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE

The calculation of net asset value per share is based on
the Group’s net assets of approximately HK$130,064,000
(2023: HK$186,246,000) divided by the Company’s ordinary
shares in issue of 84,953,092 (2023: 604,341,108) as at 31
December 2024.
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29.
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Hﬁ?'ﬁ)ﬁ*%%@%ﬁﬂf&%%ﬂﬁﬁ
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(i) EHEL
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FABRDHEE 2 BERSEYR
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BREETAARRBHREBEZR
DNEBBEP -
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TREEFE
EAREREMEzEKEIEREZS
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BREEFRE

BREEFEDNRBEAEBRR_Z_NF+=
A=+—H®WEEFEL130,064, ooo/%sm
— T~ =4 :186,246,000/8 7T ) BR LA A A
BT &M 84,953, 092Hx<_?_f¢
604,341,108f% ) st &S -



30. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 30.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

(b)

Major non-cash transaction

During the year ended 31 December 2023

Realisation of the loan notes to listed securities

During the year ended 31 December 2023, loan notes
were served as the consideration in exchange for listed
securities of approximately HK$53,548,000, which
constitutes a disposal of loan notes, and resulting a
gain on disposal of approximately HK$3,336,000 (note
10) recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31

December 2023.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

financing activities

The table set forth below is the detail changes in the
Group’s liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities

e B ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WNF+-_A=t+—HIFE

GERERERNTE
(a) FEHFBEERS
BE-_Z_=5+-A=1+—HLFE

(b)

HE KL, &5
HE-_ZT-_=ZF+-A=+—BLFE"
ERZEEEASRERRY53,548,000% T
WEMmESF HERKEERERNLE
TEHHE-_TE_=F+_A=+—HIE
FEMRABEZM L E I 43,336,000
& (KH1EE10) ©

AREETHEENEEBHHIER

TRAASBEEAMEZHEEANEELSY
HE BREReKkIReEH - RAME
EHNEEREREREELAIAKRBER

arising from financing activities are those for which ERGRAEEGFERERERDERK
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified BEREEINR S RENZEAE-
in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as
cash flows from financing activities.
1 January Cash Interest 31 December
2024 outflows charges 2024
—E-MEF —E-mEF
—A—H BER MEWMX +t=ZA=+-8°
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT THER FTHERT TERT
Promissory notes (note 25)  #NZ (f17£25) 14,335 (1,228) 832 13,939
1 January Cash Interest 31 December
2023 outflows charges 2023
T —E_=F
S e ] Remd fERY T=ZA=+—~H
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
TET THT TET TET
Lease liabilities HEERE 208 (212) 4 =
Promissory notes (note 25)  ENZ (ff7125) 14,162 (856) 1,029 14,335
14,370 (1,068) 1,033 14,335
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HEZZ-_WF+-_A=+—HIFE

30. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

31.
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(c)

Total cash outflows for leases

Amounts included in the consolidated statement of
cash flows for lease comprise the following:

. REREREBRWE (H&)

(c)

HERSRHARE
FAERERERTEHEBEENRENT

2024 2023

ZEZWmF —E=F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FTET FHET

Within operating cash flows KEBHERENRN 286 88
Within financing cash flows BERESMEN - 212
286 300

These amounts relate to the followings:

ZERHEBEATEIERRH:

2024 2023

—E-OF —E=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHERT FHET

Lease rental paid 2fHEE - 212
Short term lease paid B EEEE 286 88
286 300

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

On 29 February 2016, the Company entered into an
investment management agreement (the “Investment
Management Agreement”) with Tiger Securities Asset
Management Company Limited (“Tiger Securities”),
pursuant to which Tiger Securities has agreed to act as
the investment manager of the Group and to provide
investment management services to the Company for
a period of two years commencing from 1 March 2016
and expiring on 28 February 2018.

According to the Investment Management Agreement,
Tiger Securities shall be entitled to a management fees
of 0.5% per annum on the net asset value as per the
management account of the Company of the preceding
month with an annual cap of HK$1,800,000.

31.

ABLRXS

(a)

RZBE-—AREZAZ+NB KRAFRER
RESFEEERBRBERAA ([REEFH])
aTi?xﬁE.fiTﬁ%a#(Hxﬁﬁﬁﬁr 1) &
I ZEBLFELRAEREEASEEZRE
BEEAURABRARRHEEEE RS -

H-ZE—"F=-H—HRAPMEE=Z

—N\NF_A=-+/N\BEH-

REREEEGH FTREs-JERAR
TE;TL*MHE’]@.@EEHEFE’JE@E@@
AEBFOS%NZERE BRAERFLRA
1,800,000/%7E°



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

On 24 November 2016, the Company entered into a
supplemental investment management agreement (the
“Supplemental Investment Management Agreement”)
with Tiger Securities, pursuant to which, with effect
from 1 January 2017, management fees as set out
in the Investment Management Agreement shall be
changed from 0.5% per annum on the net asset value
as per the management account of the Company of the
preceding month with an annual cap of HK$1,800,000
to 1% per annum on the net asset value as per the
management account of the Company of the preceding
month with an annual cap of HK$2,980,000. Save as
above changed, all other terms and conditions set forth
in the Investment Management Agreement shall remain
unchanged, in full force and effect.

On 28 February 2018, the Company entered into a
extension agreement with Tiger Securities to extend
the investment management services period from 28
February 2018 to 28 February 2019.

On 28 February 2019 and 28 August 2019, the
Company entered into extension agreements with
Tiger Securities respectively, to extend the investment
management services period from 28 February 2019 to
31 August 2019 and further extended to 29 February
2020.

With effective from 1 September 2019, management
fee to Tiger Securities shall be changed from 1% per
annum on the net asset value as per the management
account of the Company of the preceding month to
0.8% per annum on the net asset value as per the
management account of the Company of the preceding
month with unchanged annual cap at HK$2,980,000.

On 28 February 2020, 7 December 2020, 16 December
2021, 21 November 2022 and 21 November 2023, the
Company entered into several renewal agreements
with Tiger Securities respectively, to renew the
investment management services period to 31 August
2024 and change the annual cap to HK$660,000.

e B ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HILFE

BELXS (&)

(&)

RZE—RE+—A-+WmA A 7FH
RERSFIURHAREERRE (MR
HEEERHZE]) B BT —tF—
A—HBR REEEHEANMBLEERE
HEAAREH E—EANEREREERH
EEZFENEEF05% BFEEF LB R
1,800,000 7T R AR A RIEYH E—EA
MNEEBRETPNEEFEAEEF1%, 6
2% FBR 452,980,000/ 7T  Br £ il i F
INIRBEBERBEANER ZATA MK
R BERTE BB +-2 A RIER-

RZZE-—NF_AZ+NB KARHEZFE
ERAIVERBE EREETERY
HEB=ZE-—N\F-_A=-+N\BE=Z
—NE_A=-+N\H-

R-ZE-—hE-_A-+N\BR-_ZE—NEF
NAZ+NB ARRDRHEFEFESRE]
VERWZ EREEEERBHMEHZ
E-—NF-_A=-+\BE2=-_E—NLFEN\A
=+ A —TEPE_FT_TF_A
Z+AhB-

BE-E—NWFNALA—BE REEFLFNF
EEBEAL—EALARREREEKERE
EFEMPERARE—EALAQRFER
BRE R EEFEN0S, 2F FRTE.
115 42,980,000 7T °

RZZE-EF-_A=-+N\B —_ZT-=F
+ZAtBE ZE=_—F+ZA+A~A8:
= E e e R RN, T — = 4
+—A=Z+—HB AARHFEREZFH
AVETEEw: EEKEEERBEH
Mz -_mWFENA=1+—H TEXRZE
& IR £660,0007% 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_ZT-_WF+-_A=+—BILFE

31.

32.

(a)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 3. BBARS (&)
(Continued) (@) (#&)
On 12 September 2024, the Company entered into RZZFEZOEFAATZB - ARARHERRE
renewal agreement with Tiger Securities to extend BRI VEERSE TREEEERD
the investment management services period from 31 HHEB_ZT_MWFNA=Z+—-BEZ-ZE
August 2024 to 31 August 2025 and change the annual THENAR=FT—H YEHREFLRZE
cap to HK$1,270,000. 1,270,000/ 7T °
Mr. Wu Ming Gai, an executive director of the KRBT ESHRELEATEESN
Company, is a director and responsible officer of Tiger EENKAAAR
Securities.
The management fees and incentive fee paid and ENRENREIEFNERERESHOT
payable to Tiger Securities are as follows:
2024 2023
—E-mE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Tiger Securities: REEH
Management fees EERE 653 774
Remuneration of key management personnel of the (b) AEBEFEEEAENFMABAITH
Group representing amounts paid to the Company’s TEEINNERE  WHRBERMFE14 -
executive directors and is disclosed in note 14.
SUBSIDIARIES 32. ELH

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31
December 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

Principal activities and

Place of incorporation place of operation

A = et S e sl F = e - 1 [ 2
AKARIKBARGBNR :

Particulars of issued

Interest held
FisER
2024 2023
—EComE  ZE-=F

share capital

BRTRAFE

WEAREH 1 B S 8t B TEXBREFBE

IT Star Limited* British Virgin Islands Investment holding in Hong Kong
IT Star Limited* B e RERR/BE

Studio V Limited* Hong Kong Investment holding in Hong Kong
Studio V Limited* A REBR/EE

*

Shares held directly by the Company.

None of the subsidiaries issued any debt securities at the
end of the reporting period.
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1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%*
1REEIZT . EHR
HK$10,000 100% 100%*
10,0007% 7T

* RRREEFAE 2B -

RBEAR SHBELRLEEITEME

K
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33.

34.

35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s contributions to
the MPF Scheme are calculated at 5% (2023: 5%) of the
salaries and wages, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$30,000 (2023: HK$30,000) and vest fully with
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme (the “Scheme”) of the Company,
was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 17 June
2022, for the primary purpose of providing incentives to
the directors of the Company, eligible employees of the
Group and others including consultants, advisors, agents,
customers, service providers, business partners of any
member of the Group (the “Participants”). The Scheme will
be expired on 16 June 2032. Under the Scheme, the board
of directors of the Company may grant options to directors
of the Company, eligible employees and the Participants, to
subscribe for shares in the Company.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in
time, without prior approval from the shareholders of the
Company. The number of shares issued and to be issued
in respect of which options granted and may be granted to
any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in
time, without prior approval from the shareholders of the
Company. Options granted to substantial shareholders or
independent non-executive directors of the Company in
excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital must be
approved in advance by the shareholders of the Company.

No share option was granted, exercised or lapsed during
the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 or remained
outstanding as at 31 December 2024 and 2023.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 6 January 2025, the Board approved the grant of
4,316,722 share options to certain eligible participants (the
“Grantees”), subject to the acceptance of the Grantees, to
subscribe for a total of 4,316,722 ordinary shares of the
Company of HK$0.01 each. Details of the grant of share
options are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 6
January 2025.

33.

34.

35.

e B ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HILFE

1R K 48 R & &

AEBRE CREMERXBERTEGH) 5FB
RERBIRY -—HARMNEATESHE (T3
BEed]) AEERFMEFENSS (ZF
Z=F 5% ) ARESEHRK - BAFEALR
A30,000/8 7t ( =% = = 4 : 30,000 7t) & £
B BEKFNEREEES -

BRETE

ARmERESE ([GHED)IRE-F——

NATEEBBH-ERBRRM TEENE
REARRER AEEAEREEREMAL (B
BHEBAA BE KRB -BF REBRERN A&
BEAKBARMERRH) (2EBAL]IE
HHEB-TEBR=_E==F A+t BEm-
RIEAE ARREEGAIRARAESE /&
REERSEATRTREARARNNER
o

AR RFRRELMAE REABTRTE
BRENRDEBTSEBRARRNEMERD
BITRME10% - RERRBBRERELAAE - 5
ER-—FRTFTHALERTERABEANBRED
BB TEITHRNBETBBEARAR
ERREHEETRON1% - MAARQFEER
REABIFRTEER TEBARAMA0.1%
BEE A WA R R E AR RRIBIRILE

MEBRERBE S _NEr_Z=-=
+ZA=t+—HBLFEERE - 1TEERR 3K
R —_WER T _=F+=-A=Z+—81
RITE-

HREHRSEIE

R-E-_FHAF— A B EFeHAtRETA
Eg2EE ([ABEA])ERT A £4,316,72217
B UREARQR A £4,316, 722 F R E
BO.0NMB Tz Lmik HEABRAZR HLE
BREZFBEEAARNRABHAE T _AF—A
NBZRMe
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EFHMBEHME
Year ended 31 December
BE+-BA=+—HLEFE
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
—E-FTF T =—ZEE-Z —E-o=F ZE-_ME
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET FAET FAET FHExT
Results: 4
Profit/(loss) attributable to RARHEE ANEIG
owners of the Company wm A (EE) (4,166) (28,643) (48,079) 53,505 (76,810)
As at 31 December
R+t=—B=+—H
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
—E2-FTF —T-—F —T-—F —FT-_=F ZE-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FAT FAT FAET FET
Assets and liabilities: EEREE:
Current assets mEEE 138,921 92,982 133,676 203,022 147,456
Total assets BEE 185,535 168,269 133,878 203,022 147,456
Current liabilities mEAaE 2,865 10,158 2,077 6,776 17,392
Total liabilities BERE 22,785 23,866 15,577 16,776 17,392
Total equity B 162,750 144,403 118,301 186,246 130,064
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